LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee:  STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date:

Venue:

Time:

10.

THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009
LANCASTER TOWN HALL
10.00 A.M.

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Election of Vice Chairman for the Municipal Year 2009/10
Please note that this appointment can only be undertaken by an Independent Member.
Minutes

Minutes of meeting held on 9" April 2009 (previously circulated).
Iltems of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman
Declarations of Interest

Work Programme (Pages 1 - 4)

Report of the Monitoring Officer

Standards Board for England - Annual Return (Pages 5 - 13)
Report of the Monitoring Officer

The Standards Committee (Further Provisions)(England) Regulations 2009 (Pages
14 - 29)

Report of the Monitoring Officer

Standards Board Guidance on Other Action (Pages 30 - 47)
Report of the Monitoring Officer

Annual Review of Registration of Interests (Pages 48 - 49)

Report of the Monitoring Officer



11. Procedure for Considering Allegations of Breach of the Council's Protocols (Pages
50 - 54)

Report of the Monitoring Officer

12. Review of Complaint Documentation and Assessment Criteria and Investigation
and Hearing Procedures (Pages 55 - 89)

Report of the Monitoring Officer

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
0) Membership
Councillors

Councillors  Roger Dennison,  Sheila Denwood, Sarah Fishwick, Janie Kirkman,
lan McCulloch, Roger Sherlock and Joyce Taylor

Independent Members

Stephen Lamley (Chairman), Tony James, David Jordison and Sue Mcintyre.

Parish Council Representatives

Margaret Davy, Paul Gardner, Susan O’Brien and Frank Senior
(i) Substitute Membership

Councillors

Councillors Keith Budden, John Gilbert, Roger Plumb, Ron Sands and Jude Towers
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Ron Matthews, Democratic Services — telephone (01524) 582070 or e-mail
rmatthews@lancaster.gov.uk.

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on 10™ June, 2009



Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

WORK PROGRAMME
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider progress with the current work programme.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS
Q) That the report be noted
1.0 Introduction

1.1 A work programme for the forthcoming year was approved by the Committee in
January 2009, and is updated at each meeting.

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 The approved work programme is attached to this report, and the progress made has
been added in the final column..

2.2 Members will note that at the time of writing this report the government has not
issued any further consultation on or information about the proposed revised Code of
Conduct which it was understood was intended to be implemented in June 2009.
Members will also note that the proposed internal ethical governance survey has not
yet been undertaken. The other items due for consideration at this meeting appear
elsewhere on the agenda.

2.3 The work programme is a living document and can be updated as and when
required.

3.0 Details of Consultation
3.1 There has been no consultation.
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 The report is for noting, although It is open to the Committee to make amendments to
the work programme.



Page 2

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Alquassy 6002 ayi 01 a1ebajap Jaquisw Arenuue aouepuane aininy
B puas 0] 10U papIaap 6002 Arenuer puzgz ay) Uuo aaniwwo) pue 600z Alenuer | J9pISUOD pue A|quassy [enuuy snoinaid uo podal anieday | 0T
S|020101d
epuabe siy} uo yoday 6002 aunr 10 yoeauq jo suoneba|e Buuspisuod 10} 8lNpadoid MaINSY ‘6
sainpadsoid uonebnsaaul
epuabe siy) uo poday 600z aunc | pue Buueay ‘Buiieay-aid ‘©1I8IID JUBWSSISSE [BI0| MBINSY ‘8
epuabe siyl uo uoday ‘600z Arenuer puzg 6002 aunr pue
ay) uo panoidde aiam wioy Jure|dwod sy 0} SlJuswpuawe JoUIN | 6002 Aenuer puzg Sjueure|dwod 10} uoiewloul pue wloj jurejdwod mainay ‘)
sjurejdwod 19npuo) Jo apod
600¢ |udy panoiddy 6002 |udy noge sauinbul ssaid yum Buipeap 10j |090]01d 19pISU0) ‘9
™) epuabe siyy uo yoday 6002 aunr Sisalalul Jo uonensiBal Jo M3IABI [enuuy ‘G
m 6002 uael uonoe pue paAlddal sjure|dwod
al ‘6002 |Udy ul payoday | Jaquaidas pue |udy 10NpuU0) JO BP0 JO JBaqUINU INOJe UOITBWIOUI DAIBIDY 87
Buiwn uo
Buipuadap Bunasw SJ10||1ounod ysired pue A0
"10NpuU0) JO 8p0D pasinal Yyim ssalboid oN | [eroads 10 600Z dunr | 10} 19NPUOD JO BP0 MU U0 Sluswalinbal Buluren Japisuo) '€
Buiwn uo Buipuadap
Buneauw eloads
"19Npu0) JO |8p0Y pasinal pasodoid ay) Inoge 10 ‘6002 aung uonejuswaldwi
a|ge|reAe S| uoiewloul Jayuny ou ‘wodal siyl Bunum Jo awn ayl Iy 10 6002 1dv U6 1o} sjuswiabuelle pue 10NpuU0) JO BP0D PASIABI JIBPISU0D 4
(uoneynsuod
YIM 3pIouIod
‘panssi 01 Bunaaw [e1oads 10NpuU0) JO 8p0D pasinal
usaQ pey uoneyNsSu0d Jayuny ou ‘Lodal siyl Bunum jo awn ayl Iy 10) 6002 [Mdy Yie | pasodoid uo uoneynsuod Juswuidnoh Jayuny Aue J1apisuod T
SS3IUO0Ud 31vd ONIL33IN NOILOV ON

600¢ JNINVHOO0Hd XHOM — 331L1INNOD SAJVANVLS




4

m.v AaAIns ay) woJj 1IsuUag Wnwixew ainsua
d 0] uayeuapun Buiaq |ns si ylom Aloreredald 192110 BuLIONUO
at ay1 yum uonounfuod ul upny [eulau| Aq uayeuapun ag 0l AsAINS 6002 |udy Aanins aosueulanob [ealyls Jo Jnsal Malnay | 9T
6002 Joquardas [020101d Buluue|d mainay | ‘ST
Ajrenuue
600z Arenuer panoidde Aoljod pasinay pue 600z Arenuer uonelado sl pue A21j0d BUIMO|gaISIUM MBINSY |  "PT
paiinbal uaym pue
Se seawwoD-qns swe|dwod 1onpuo) Jo apo)d yum buleaq | €T
paiinbai
uaym pue sy suonesuadsip 10} sisanbal yum Buieaq | gt
suonenbay
M3U JO S1U31U0D Jo/pue suonesuadsig pue Saaniwwo) oL
epuabe siy) uo pyoday paiinbai sy 0] Bunejal suoneNbay Mmau U0 uoneNsuod Aue Japisuo) | 'TIT
SS3YO0dd 31vd ONIL3I3IN NOILOV ON




Page 5 Agenda ltem 7

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND — ANNUAL RETURN
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform the Committee of the annual return required by the Standards Board.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS
Q) That the report be noted
1.0 Report

1.1 Since the implementation of the new regime for the consideration of Code of Conduct
complaints locally, the Monitoring Officer has been required to complete a quarterly
statistical return to the Standards Board with regard to the complaints received and
their outcome. In addition, the Standards Board has now introduced a requirement
for an annual return to be completed, providing further information about the work of
the Standards Committee during the preceding year. The first such return was
issued on the 20th April 2009, and was required to be completed online by the 15th
May 2009.

1.2 A copy of the completed return is appended to this report for Members’ information.
The Chairman was consulted in the preparation of the document.

1.3 The Standards Board recommends that a copy be placed on the Council’'s website,
and it is intended that this will be done following this meeting.

1.4 The report is for noting.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.



Page 6

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




The Standards Board for England Page 7 Page 1 of 7

..

Standards Board
for England

Wednesday 28 April 2008

g@the

Standards Board
for England

Contidence inlocal democracy

Annual return

Summary i

show all ¥’
Section 1 independent overview show IV
Section 2 Standards commitiee - annuat report show ¥
Section 3 Standards committee - promoting standards show ¥
Section 4 Standards committee - training show ¥
Section § Leadership show [V
Section § Complaints show ¥
Section 7 Member officer - relations show ¥
Section 8 Registering member interests show [V
Section 9 Officer conduct show ¥
Section 10 Optional questions show IV

Independent overview

https://annual.stahdardsboard. gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary.aspx 29/04/2009




The Standards Board for England Page 8 Page 2 of 7

Does the standards committee have Terms of Reference?

Yes

What help do members receive on following the Code of Conduct?

Members receive training as part of the induction process and/or when a revised Code of Conduct is adopted, and refresher
training where appropriate. Members are aware that the Monitoring Officer and the Deputy Monitoring Officer are always
available to answer individuat questions on Code of Conduct issues {subject to any conflict issues in the event that a
complaint is being dealt with}. Where Cabinet or Council are to consider issues where it is known that there are particular
Code of Conduct issues, written advice is generally circulated in advance to the relevant elected members.

Daes the standards committee have a forward work plan?

Yes

If yes, who outside of the standards committee is involved in agreeing the forward work plan? Please explain below.

The work plan is prepared by the Monitering Officer in consuliation with the Chief Exesutive and Beputy Monitoring Officer,
and approved by the Committee.

Is the standards committee given a role in reviewing amendments to the Authority's Constitution (or Standing Orders where
appropriate)?

Yes

If yes, when was the last review undertaken and what was the standards committee’s role in the review? Please explain
below.

The Standards Committee's role is limited to reviewing local Protocots relating to the conduct of Members and the Councit's
Whistleblowing Policy. The Whistieblowing Poticy was reviewed in January 2009, and the Planning Protocol in September
2007. Other amendments to the Constitution are within the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Council
Business Committee

Standards committ_ee meeting___s.

Please use the table below to indicate how many times between 01/04/2008 and 31/03/2009 the standards committee has
met and for what reasons.

Reason for mesting Number of times met between 01/04/2008 and

31/03/2009
General meeting of whole standards committee 4
Training 1
Assessment sub-committee 5
Review sub-committee 1
Consideration meeting 0
Hearing 0
Other 0

Does the standards committee produce an annual report on its own work?
Yes
Is the annual report received by a mesting of the full authority?

Yes

https://annual.standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary .aspx 29/04/2009



The Standards Board for England Page 9 Page 3 of 7

Is the annual report sent to all members?

Yes

Is the annual report sent to all senior officers?

Na

How is the annual report publicised to the general public?

Through publication of the agenda of the Council meeting at which it is considered.

Standards committee - promoting standards

What else does the standards committee do to communicate the role of the standards committee and the importance of
high standards internally within the authority to members and officers?

The Chairman attends the meating of full Council at which the annual report is considered, in order to pressnt the report and
answer questions from Members. Independent Members of the Commitiee attend member training on the Code of Conduct

and induction for new members. The Chairman and the Commiitee have made it known fo the Chief Executive that thay are
happy to champion standards jointly with him where this would be helpful. However, it has not been necessary to meet with

the Chief Executive over the last twelve months.

What else has the standards committee done to promote confidence in local democracy to the wider public?

Infarmation about the Cornmittee’s work and in particular the new regime for the local consideration of complaints has been
publicised in the Council's magazine which is circulated to all households in the district. In May 2008, information was
circulated to libraries, universities and Citizens Advice Bureaux about the new procedure for dealing with complaints.

Has the authority, or the standards committee in particular, considered how it will monitor and ensure high standards of
behaviour when the authority is working in partnership with other organisations?

Yes
Please provide examples.

The Council's internal auditors have taken the lead in developing a framework for the performance management and
scrutiny of the Council’s major partnerships, including a ‘mapping' exercise to identify the number and type of existing
partnerships and the infroduction of a Partnership Development and Evaluation Toolkit aimed at evaluating the
effectiveness of individual partnerships and the Council's involvement in them. Conduct issues will be considered in this
context.

Standards commiitee - fraining

Between 01/04/2008 and 31/03/2009, has the authority assessed the training and development needs of members in
refation to their responsibilities on standards of conduct?

Yes
What training needs were identified?

The Standards Committee considered training needs in June 2008, mindful that considerable training for city and parish
councilters had been undertaken in May/June 2007 following the council elections and adeption of the new Code of
Conduct, and that further training was not immediately required. It suggested contacting the parish councils to estabtish
whether they would welcome training arranged in geographical groups. Unfortunately there was no positive responss from
the parish councils. It was also envisaged that refresher training would be offered to city councillors prior to a Council
meeting. However, this had been deferred in anticipation that a revised Code of Conduct would have been ready for
implementation at this time.

Please provide a list of {raining and development opportunities that have been provided to members and officers in the

hitps://annual standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary.aspx - 29/04/2009



The Standards Board for England Page 10 Page 4 of 7

period from 01/04/2008 and 31/03/2009, that are relevant to ensuring high standards. Your list should include any training
that relates to the operation of the local standards framework, e.g. local assessment, hearings etc.

Standards Committee members received training on the new framework by considering cases from the SBE's locall filter
pilot in June 2008. {Other cases had been considered at a training session in January 2008). The formal meeting of the
Committes that adopted the assessment procedures and criteria was in effect a training session on the new regime. The
Chairman and Deputy Monitoring Officer altended the Annual Standards Assembiy in October 2008. The Vice-Chairman
and the Monitoring Officer attended a training event in January 2009 run by Cumbria County Council at which the Standards
Board was represented.

Leadership

How often has the standards committee, or its chair, met the chief executive to discuss ethical issues in the last 12 months
(from 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2009)?

Nong
Please also provide an overview of what the meetings were about.

Whilst the Chairman has made it known to the Chief Executive that he is happy to champion standards jointly where this
would be helpful, a meeting has not been necessary in the last twelve months.

How often has the standards committee, or its chair, met the leader of the councll to discuss ethical issues in the last 12
manths (from 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2000)7

None

Please also provide an overview of what the meetings were about.

How often has the standards committes, or its chair, met the other party group leaders to discuss ethical issues in the last
12 months ({from 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2009)7

None

Please also provide an overview of what the meetings were about.

Does the standards committee, or its chair, have regular access to the manitoring officer? How regular?
Access is available whenever required.

How many times in the last 12 months {from 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2009) has the standards committee chair been invited to
address a full authority meeting?

None

Does the monitoring officer sit on the Corporate Management Team, or equivalent?

Yes

Has an executive member (or senior member where appropriate) been given portfolio responsibility for standards?

No

Complaints

Can the public access information, from the authority website, about how to make a complaint against a member?

Yes

What else has the authority done to advertise the complaint process on member conduct to the general public?

https://annual.standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummatry.aspx 25/04/2009



The Standards Board for England Page 11 Page 5 of 7

Information in the Council's magazine circulated to all households in the district. Press release. Notices were posted in the
City Council's Customer Service Centres, and all libraries, universities, Citizens Advice Bureaux and parish cuncifs in the
district were requested to display the notice.

Has the autherity sought feedback from any of those people involved in an allegation of member misconduct about their
satisfaction with the member conduct complaint process (for example the complainant, witnesses or person against whom
the allegation was made)? Please choose from responses below.

No, have nof sought feedback

How does the authority communicate the outcome of investigations into member conduct to:

a) members

The Council has not yet had any investigations, but the outcome of a hearing would be notified to the subject member in

accordance with the Regulations. The outcome of the hearing would be included in the summary of all complaints,which is
submitted at six monthly intervals to the Standards Committee, and in the annual report to Council.

b) officers

The outcome would only be notified to relevant officers -ag Chief Executive, Deputy Monitering Officer, and democratic
and legal officers as appropriate.

¢) the general public

The Council has not yet had any hearings, but woutd comply with the notice requirements as set out in the Regulations,
and would issue a press release. The Standards Committee has adopted a protocol for dealing with press enquiries.

How does the authority communicate the outcome of allegations into member conduct which have NOT resulted iIn an
investigation {for example those alfegations which have not been referred for investigation and those allegations which
have resulted in other acticn) fo;

a) members

Subject member and complainant notified formally in writing immediately. Six monthly summary of all complaints and
outcomes Is presented to Standards Committee, and annual report to Council includes summary of complaints and
outcomes.

b} officers
Only to relevant officers -eg Chisf Executive, Deputy Menitoring Officer, and democratic and legal officers as appropriate.
¢) the general public

The summary of the Assessment Sub-Committes is available for inspection by the public in accordance with the
Regulations. The Standards Commitiee has adopted a pretocol for deating with press enquiries.

Member officer relations

Does the authority have a protocol for relations between members and officers?
Yes
How is the protocol communicated to officers and members?

The Protocol is included in the Councit's Constitution, and is brought to the attention of individual members or officers, as
required, by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.

What is the mechanism for reviewing the sffectiveness of this protocol?

This is within the terms of reference of the Standards Committee.

Does the authority include training on the importance of high standards of behaviour in the inductions of new members and

https://annual standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary.aspx 29/04/2009



The Standards Board for England Page 12 Page 6 of 7

officers?

Yes

Does the authority have informal mechanisms for dealing with member/officer and member/member disputes?
Yes

Please provide details of any mechanisms and, if possible, pro.vide an example where this has been used.

Informal discussions between the Chief Executive or Corporate Director and individual member and/or group leadsr. An
example is where a member had criticised an officer in the press, and this was resolved informally.

Registering member interests

Is the member register of interests accessible to the public on the authority website?
No
Please briefly explain whether there is any particular reason why not.

It is not considered that this would meet the requirements of the Brata Protection Act 1898, and in particular the data
protecticn principles. Publishing the register on the website would go considerably further than making it available for public
inspection, and poses far wider risks of misuse.

Is the register of gifts and hospitality available to the public on the authority website?
No

What does the authority do to signal to members the importance of declaring interests and completing the register of
interests and the register of gifts and hospitality’?

The Monitoring Officer conducts an annual review whereby members are required to complete either a change form or a
declaration that there have been no changes since the last form was complsted. The outcome of the review is reported to
the Standards Commitiee. Parish clerks are also requested annually to remind their councillors of the need to keep the
register up to date. Wrilten advice is given to members where there are particular issues arising in relation to interests, and
oral advice is given as appropriate at meetings.

Offiger conduct

Does the authority have a code of conduct for senior officers?

Yes

Does the authority compile a register of senior officers’ interests?

Yes

If yes, s the register of senior officers’ interests available to the public on the authority website?

Ne

Does the authority compile a register of senior officers’ gifts and hospitality?

Yes

If yes, is the senior officers’ register of gifts and hospitality available to the public on the authority website?

No

https://annual.standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary.aspx 29/04/2009



The Standards Board for England Page 13 Page 7 of 7

Optional questions

The following questions are optional; you do not have to complete them if you do not wish to. However, this information
wolld be useful to us in helping us to raise ethical standards.

On what issues, if any, would you appreciate more support or guidance on from the Standards Board for Engfand?

The Standards Board for England, the Improvement and Development Agency and the Audit Commission have developed a
toolkit that authorities can use to assess the ethical governance arrangements in their authority, and also to identify
improvements,

Has your authority used the ethical governance toolkit?

No

If no, has your authority considered using the ethical governance toolkit?

Yes

The Standards Board for England © 2008

https://annual.standardsboard.gov.uk/AnnualReturnSummary .aspx 29/04/2009




Agenda Item 8 Page 14

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE (FURTHER PROVISIONS)

(ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2009
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform the Committee of new Regulations taking effect from the 15th June 2009.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

1) That the report be noted

1.0 Introduction

1.1 New Regulations were made on the 18th May 2009, coming into force on the 15th
June 2009. The Regulations cover three areas: they enable the Standards Board for
England (Standards Board) to suspend a local authority standards committee’s
power to undertake the initial assessment on allegations of misconduct, make
provision for two or more local authorities to establish a joint standards committee,
and replace the existing provisions relating to dispensations.

1.2 A copy of the Regulations is attached to this report.

2.0 Details of the Regulations
Suspension of Standards Committee’s assessment powers

2.1 The Local Government Act 2000, as amended by the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007, established the Standards Board as a strategic
regulator. The Standards Board monitors the performance of authorities in operating
the conduct regime by requiring authorities to complete quarterly online returns in
relation to the cases they handle, and an annual return.

2.2 The legislation provides the Standards Board with the power to remove a standards

committee’s function to assess complaints of breach of the Code of Conduct. The
Regulations set out how these powers will be exercised, and in particular empower
the Standards Board to direct that a local authority’s standards committee’s initial
assessment functions are suspended where:



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

Page 15

e the standards committee has failed to comply with the Standards Board’'s
guidance on the conduct regime;

o the standards committee has failed to comply with a direction given by the
Standards Board;

o the standards committee or the monitoring officer has failed to carry out functions
in relation to the conduct of members in a timely or appropriate manner; or

o the authority or the standards committee has invited the Standards Board to give
a direction.

The Standards Board’'s decision on whether to suspend a standards committee’s
initial assessment functions will be taken on a case by case basis, and informed by
information gathered by the Standards Board about the performance of standards
committees and the authority’s monitoring officer. If the Standards Board is satisfied
that any of the circumstances above apply, it may suspend the initial assessment
function of that authority. Before a direction is given, the Standards Board must give
notice to the authority of its intention to give such a direction, and a copy of the notice
must be sent to the chairman of the standards committee and the monitoring officer.

Where a direction is in place, either the Standards Board, or, with its consent, the
standards committee of another authority, will undertake the initial assessment
functions on behalf of the standards committee which is the subject of the
suspension. The Regulations make detailed provision for the Standards Board or the
other authority to deal with an allegation itself or to refer it to the monitoring officer of
the “suspended” standards committee for investigation or other action. This is done
by adapting the provisions of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008
to meet the relevant scenario.

Joint Standards Committees

The Regulations make provision for two or more relevant authorities to establish a
joint standards committee to exercise their functions under the devolved conduct
regime.

The Regulations provide that such a joint standards committee may exercise any, or
all, of the functions of dealing with Code of Conduct complaints, or the function of the
granting and supervision of exemptions from political restrictions imposed under the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. This provides flexibility for authorities to
decide which functions they wish to be exercised by a joint standards committee,
based on their own needs and circumstances. This may involve discharging only the
initial assessment functions jointly, or all of the standards committee’s functions.

The Regulations set out requirements for the terms of reference of joint standards
committees.

Guidance on joint committees is to be issued by the Standards Board but is not
available at the time of writing this report. It will be circulated to members if it is
available before the meeting.

When the question of joint committees has been considered by this Committee as
part of various consultation exercises in the past, the view has always been taken
that a joint committee would not be desirable as it would detract from the principle of
the local assessment of complaints. There has been no indication that any of the
neighbouring councils would be interested in forming a joint committee.



2.10

2.11

2.12

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Page 16

Dispensations

The Regulations revoke the previous Dispensation Regulations, and replace them
with new provisions to clarify the rules which apply to standards committees when
granting dispensations to local authority members. If a member acts in accordance
with a dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory
provisions of the Code of Conduct will not constitute a failure to comply with the
Code.

The circumstances where a standards committee may grant a dispensation to a

member or co-opted member are:

o where more than 50% of the members who would, but for the granting of any
dispensations in relation to that business, be entitled to vote at a meeting, are
prohibited from voting; or

o where the number of members that are prohibited from voting at a meeting
would, but for the granting of any dispensations in relation to that business, upset
the political balance of the meeting to the extent that the outcome of voting would
be prejudiced.

A request for a dispensation must be submitted in writing to the standards committee.
As previously, a dispensation can only be granted in respect of business arising in
the period of four years following the grant of the dispensation.

Details of Consultation

There has been no consultation.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

The report is for noting.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report. If a joint committee were to be considered in the
future, any financial implications would be reported at that time.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.




Page 17

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Page 18

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2009 No. 1255
LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND AND WALES

The Standards Committee (Further Provisions) (England)
Regulations 2009

Made - - - - 18th May 2009
Laid before Parliament 21st May 2009
Coming into force - - 15th June 2009

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 53(6), 56A(1), 57D(1) and
(6), 81(5) and 105(2) of the Local Government Act 2000(a), makes the following Regulations:

PART 1
GENERAL

Citation, commencement and application

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Standards Committee (Further Provisions)
(England) Regulations 2009 and shall come into force on 15th June 2009.

(2) Parts 1 and 4 apply to relevant authorities in England and police authorities in Wales.

(3) Parts 2 and 3 apply to relevant authorities in England.

Interpretation

2. In Parts 2 to 4 of these Regulations—
“the Act” means the Local Government Act 2000;

“authority” means a relevant authority within the meaning given to that expression by section
49(6) of the Act (principles governing conduct of members of relevant authorities) but—

(1) in Parts 2 and 3 it does not include parish councils; and

(i1) in Part 3 it also includes any local authority specified in regulations made under
section 3A(8)(b) of the 1989 Act.

“the 1989 Act” means the Local Government and Housing Act 1989(c);

“monitoring officer”, in relation to an authority which is a relevant authority for the purposes
of section 5 of the 1989 Act (designation and reports of monitoring officer)(d), means the

(a) 2000 c. 22. Section 56A was inserted by section 189 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
(c. 28). Section 57D was inserted by section 185 of that Act.

(b) Section 3A was inserted by section 202 of the Local Government Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

(¢) 1989c.42.

(d) There have been amendments to section 5 which are not relevant.



Page 19

monitoring officer designated under subsection (1) of that section and includes any person for
the time being nominated by the monitoring officer as deputy for the purposes of that section
and any person nominated under section 82A(2) or (3) of the Act(a) to perform any function;

“Standards Board” means the Standards Board for England constituted under section 57 of the
Act.

PART 2
SUSPENSION OF INITIAL ASSESSMENT FUNCTIONS

Prescription of circumstances in which power to suspend certain functions of standards
committee may be exercised

3.—(1) The circumstances which are prescribed, under the power conferred on the Secretary of
State by section 57D(1) and (8) of the Act, for the purpose of the exercise by the Standards Board
of the power conferred on it by section 57D(1) to give a direction in accordance with that
subsection, are those listed in paragraph (2) of this regulation.

(2) The circumstances mentioned in paragraph (1), in which the Standards Board may exercise
the power mentioned in that paragraph, are any one or more of the following—

(a) The standards committee of the specified authority has failed to have regard to guidance
issued by the Standards Board with respect to the exercise of functions under Part 3 of the
Act or regulations made under that Part.

(b) The standards committee of the specified authority has failed to comply with a direction
issued by the Standards Board with respect to the exercise of functions under Part 3 of the
Act or regulations made under that Part.

(¢) The standards committee of the specified authority has failed to carry out within a
reasonable time period or in a reasonable manner, one or more functions under Part 3 of
the Act or regulations made under that Part.

(d) The monitoring officer of the specified authority has failed to carry out within a
reasonable time period or in a reasonable manner, one or more functions under Part 3 of
the Act or regulations made under that Part.

(e) The specified authority has invited the Standards Board to exercise the power under
section 57D(1) of the Act.

(f) The standards committee of the specified authority has invited the Standards Board to
exercise the power under section 57D(1) of the Act.

(3) Where any authorities have established a joint standards committee, the Standards Board
may exercise the power under section 57D(1) of the Act to give a direction in respect of that joint
standards committee, and this Part shall apply in respect of such joint standards committees with
all necessary modifications.

(4) Before exercising the power to give a direction, the Standards Board must comply with any
applicable requirements of regulation 5.

Revocation of direction

4.—(1) Where the Standards Board has given a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act, it may
revoke that direction if, on reviewing the relevant circumstances, it is satisfied that those
circumstances no longer apply.

(a) Section 82A was inserted by section 113(2) of the Local Government Act 2003 (c. 26). Subsection (1) was amended by
section 194(9) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (c. 28).



Page 20

(2) In this regulation “relevant circumstances” means such circumstances, as prescribed by
regulation 3(2), as the Standards Board considered gave reason for the exercise of the power to
give the direction in question.

Notice of intention to serve direction

5.—(1) Where the Standards Board intends to give a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act,
it must give notice of that intention, in accordance with the provisions of this regulation, to the
authority which it considers should be specified in the direction.

(2) The notice shall be given in writing and shall—

(a) state the intention of the Standards Board to give a direction under section 57D(1) of the
Act;

(b) give the reasons why the Standards Board intends to give such a direction; and

(c) set a date no later than 6 months from the date on which the notice is served, before
which a direction may be given.

(3) The Standards Board shall send a copy of the notice served under paragraph (2) to the chair
of the standards committee and to the monitoring officer of the authority.

(4) The notice served under paragraph (2) shall give the authority no less than 28 days in which
to submit observations to the Standards Board.

(5) The Standards Board shall take account of any observations received and any other relevant
evidence before deciding whether to proceed to give a direction.

(6) If no direction is given before the date specified in a notice served under paragraph (2), the
Standards Board must serve a fresh notice under that paragraph before it may give a direction.

(7) This regulation does not apply—

(a) where a direction is given pursuant to an invitation under regulation 3(2)(e) or (f) to the
Standards Board to suspend any functions of a standards committee; or

(b) to a further direction given under regulation 7.

Service and contents of direction
6.—(1) Where the Standards Board decides to give a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act,
it shall serve the direction on the specified authority in writing.

(2) The Standards Board shall send a copy of the direction to the chair of the standards
committee and to the monitoring officer of the specified authority concerned, and to the chair of
the standards committee of any other authority which is referred to in the direction.

(3) The direction shall specify—
(a) the date from which it is to take effect;
(b) the reasons why it has been given; and

(c) the identity of the body which will deal with the initial assessment of any written
allegations received by the standards committee.

(4) The direction shall require the specified authority to arrange for details of the direction to be
published—

(a) 1n at least one newspaper circulating in that authority’s area;
(b) if considered appropriate by the Standards Board, on that authority’s web page; and
(c) if considered appropriate by the Standards Board, in any other publication.

Amendment to direction

7.—(1) Where—



Page 21

(a) the Standards Board has served a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act on a specified
authority in accordance with regulation 6(1), and

(b) that direction has not been revoked,

the Standards Board may serve a further direction on the authority in writing specifying a different
body to deal with the initial assessment of any written allegations received by the standards
committee.

(2) The Standards Board shall send a copy of any direction served under paragraph (1) to the
chair of the standards committee and to the monitoring officer of the specified authority
concerned, and to the chair of the standards committee of any other authority which is referred to
in the direction.

(3) A direction under paragraph (1) shall specify the date from which allegations made to the
standards committee of the authority must be sent to the different body.

Service and contents of notice of revocation

8.—(1) Where the Standards Board decides, under regulation 4, to revoke a direction under
section 57D(1) of the Act, it shall serve notice of its decision in writing on the specified authority.

(2) The Standards Board shall send a copy of the notice to the chair of the standards committee
and to the monitoring officer of the specified authority, and to the chair of the standards committee
of any other authority which is referred to in the direction.

(3) The notice shall specify the date from which the revocation of the direction is to take effect
and shall require the specified authority to arrange for details of the revocation of the direction to
be published—

(a) in at least one newspaper circulating in that authority’s area;
(b) if considered appropriate by the Standards Board, on that authority’s web page;
(c) if considered appropriate by the Standards Board, in any other publication.

Assessment of allegations by Standards Board

9.—(1) This regulation applies where a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act is in force and
specifies the Standards Board as the body to whom relevant allegations and relevant requests
should be referred.

(2) Section 57A(4), and section 57C(2) and (3) of the Act(a) shall apply as if, for references in
those subsections to ‘“the standards committee”, there were substituted references to “the
Standards Board”.

(3) Section 58 of the Act (allegations referred to Standards Board)(b) shall apply to an allegation
referred by a standards committee to the Standards Board under section 57D(1)(b) of the Act, as it
applies to an allegation referred under section 57A(2)(b) of the Act, but with the modifications set
out in paragraph (4) of this regulation.

(4) The modifications to section 58 of the Act mentioned in paragraph (3) are that—

(a) subsection (1) shall apply as if for paragraph (c) of that subsection, there were substituted
“refer the allegation to the monitoring officer of the authority (or, if appropriate, of
another authority), to be dealt with as if it had been referred by a standards committee
under section 57A(2)(a)”; and

(b) subsections (3) and (4) are omitted.

(5) Regulations 11, 13, 14 and 16 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008(c)
shall apply in respect of matters referred to monitoring officers under section 58(1)(c) of the Act

(a) Sections 57A and 57C were inserted by section 185 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
(c. 28).

(b) Section 58 was substituted by section 185 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

(¢) SI2008 No. 1085.



Page 22

as modified by paragraph (4) of this regulation, as they apply to matters referred under section
57A(2) or (3) of the Act, with the modifications set out in paragraph (6) of this regulation.

(6) The modifications mentioned in paragraph (5) are that—
(a) Regulation 11 (modification of duty to give written summary) shall apply as if—

(1) references in that regulation to “the standards committee” were references to “the
Standards Board”; and

(i1) the references to section 57C(2) of the Act were references to that section as applied
by paragraph (2) of this regulation.

(b) Regulation 13 (referral of matters to monitoring officer for steps other than investigation)
shall apply as if—

(1) the reference in paragraph (1)(a) to “a standards committee” and the references in
paragraphs (3)(c), (5) and the first reference in paragraph (6) to “the standards
committee”, were each a reference to “the Standards Board”;

(i1) the reference in paragraph (1)(a) to “section 57A(2)(a) or 57A(3) of the Act” were a
reference to section 58(1)(c) of the Act as modified by paragraph (4)(a) of this
regulation;

(iii) paragraph (2) were omitted; and
(iv) for paragraph (4)(c)(i) there were substituted “where the matter was referred to the

monitoring officer under section 58(1)(c) of the Act, to the Standards Board with a
copy also being sent to the standards committee”.

(c) Regulation 14 (referral of matters to monitoring officer for investigation) shall apply as
if—
(1) the references in paragraph (1) to section 57A(2)(a) and 57A(3) were a reference to
section 58(1)(c) as modified by paragraph (4)(a) of this regulation;

(i1) the first reference to “the standards committee” in paragraph (2) were a reference to
“the Standards Board”; and

(iii) at the end of paragraph (8)(c) there were added “and to the Standards Board”.
(d) Regulation 16 (references back from monitoring officer) shall apply as if—

(1) after the reference in paragraph (1) to section 57A(2)(a), there were inserted “or
section 58(1)(c)”;

(i1) for the words “refer that matter back to the standards committee concerned” in
paragraph (1) there were substituted “refer the matter to, or back to, the Standards
Board”;

(iii) in the full-out after paragraph (1)(a)(ii), after “section 57A(2) of the Act” there were
inserted “or the Standards Board when it made its decision under section 58(1)(c) of
the Act”;

(iv) in paragraph (1)(a)(iii) after the words “standards committee” there were inserted “or
Standards Board, as the case may be,”;

(v) for paragraph (2) there were substituted “If a matter is referred to, or back to, the
Standards Board under this regulation, the Standards Board shall make a decision as
if the allegation had been made to the standards committee under section 57A(1) of
the Act”; and

(vi) for paragraph (4) there were substituted “Where the Standards Board considers a
matter referred to it, or back to it, under this regulation, it may direct that the matter
should not be referred to it a further time.”.

Assessment of allegations by standards committee of another authority

10.—(1) This regulation applies where a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act is in force
and specifies the standards committee of another authority in England as the body to whom
relevant allegations and relevant requests should be referred.



Page 23

(2) For the purposes of this regulation and the modifications which it makes—

(a)
(b)

the standards committee of the authority given the direction is called “the suspended
standards committee”; and

the standards committee of the other authority specified as mentioned in paragraph (1) is
called “the specified body”.

(3) Section 57A(2) to (4) of the Act shall apply as if—

(2)
(b)

(©)

references in those subsections to a “standards committee” were to the “specified body”;

in section 57A(2), for the words “under subsection (1)” there were substituted “by virtue
of a direction under section 57D(1)”; and

at the end of section 57A(2)(a) there were added “or to the monitoring officer of the
specified body”.

(4) Section 57C(2) to (4) of the Act shall apply as if references in those subsections to “the
standards committee” were to “the specified body”.

(5) Regulations 11, 13, 14 and 16 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 shall
apply in respect of matters referred to monitoring officers under section 57A(2)(a) or (3) of the
Act as modified by paragraph (3) of this regulation, with the modifications set out in paragraph (6)
of this regulation.

(6) The modifications mentioned in paragraph (5) are that—

(2)

(b)

(©

(d)

Regulation 11 shall apply as if the references to section 57C(2) of the Act were to that
section as modified by paragraph (4) of this regulation, and as if for the words “standards
committee” in that regulation there were substituted the words “the specified body”.

Regulation 13 shall apply as if—

(1) for the words “standards committee” in each place where they occur in paragraphs
(1)(a), (2), 3(c) and (5) and in the first place in which they occur in paragraph (6),
there were substituted the words “specified body”;

(i1) the reference in paragraph (1)(a) to “section 57A(2)(a) or 57A(3) of the Act” were to
those provisions as modified by paragraph (3) of this regulation; and

(iii) for paragraph (4)(c)(i) there were substituted “where the matter was referred to the
monitoring officer under section 57(A) to the specified body, with a copy also being
sent to the standards committee.”.

Regulation 14 shall apply as if—

(1) the references in paragraph (1) to section 57A(2)(a) and 57A(3) of the Act were a
reference to those provisions as modified by paragraph (3) of this regulation;

(i1) in paragraph (2), for the words “standards committee” in the first place in which they
occur, there were substituted the words “specified body”;

(iii) at the end of subparagraph (8)(c) there were added “and to the specified body”; and

(iv) for paragraph (8)(d)(i) there were substituted “either the suspended standards
committee or the specified body”.

Regulation 16 shall apply as if—

(1) the reference in paragraph (1) to section 57A(2)(a) of the Act, were to that provision
as modified by paragraph (3) of this regulation;

(i1) for the words “refer that matter back to the standards committee concerned” in
paragraph (1) there were substituted “refer the matter to, or back to the specified
body”;

(iii) in the full-out after paragraph (1)(a)(ii), and in paragraph (1)(a)(iii), after the words
“standards committee” there were inserted “or the specified body”; and

(iv) for the words “standards committee” in each place in which they occur in paragraphs
(2) and (4) there were substituted the words “specified body”.



Page 24

Reviews of decisions not to act

11.—(1) This regulation applies where a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act is in force
and a person makes a request under section 57B(2) of the Act(a) for the review of a decision as
provided for by that subsection.

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), the body specified in the direction shall review the decision as if it
were an allegation made under section 57A of the Act, as modified by regulation 9 or 10 (as the
case may be).

(3) No individual who took part in the making of the decision shall take part in the review of
that decision.

(4) If by virtue of paragraph (2) a decision is made that no action should be taken in respect of
an allegation, section 57B of the Act does not apply in relation to that decision.

Consultation with ombudsmen

12.—(1) If a standards committee of an authority in relation to which a direction under section
57D(1) of the Act is in force, is consulted by a Local Commissioner under section 67(2) of the Act
(consultation with ombudsmen)(b) or by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales under section
67(2A) of the Act(c), that committee shall—

(a) inform the Local Commissioner or Public Services Ombudsman for Wales, as the case
may be, that it has been given a direction under section 57D(1) of the Act; and

(b) provide contact details of the body specified in the direction.

(2) A Local Commissioner and the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales may consult the body
specified in paragraph (1)(b) about the investigation.

Service of documents

13. Any notice or direction under this Part served by the Standards Board shall be deemed to
have been effectively served 2 days after it has been sent unless the contrary is proved.

PART 3
JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEES

Establishment and functions etc. of joint standards committees

14.—(1) Two or more authorities may establish a joint standards committee to exercise such
functions falling within paragraph (2) as may be determined by those authorities.

(2) A joint standards committee may exercise any function conferred by or under Part 3 of the
Act or Part 1 of the 1989 Act and subject to paragraph (5), enactments conferring such functions
shall be construed accordingly in relation to such a committee and as though any reference to a
standards committee were to a joint standards committee.

(3) Any function exercisable by a joint standards committee shall be exercisable only by that
committee and not by a standards committee of any of the individual authorities which established
that joint committee.

(4) Where a joint standards committee has responsibility for the exercise of all the functions of a
standards committee under the enactments mentioned in paragraph (2), that joint standards
committee is to be treated as the committee required to be established by section 53(1) of the Act

(a) Section 57B was inserted by section 185 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (c.28).

(b) Section 67 was amended by section 196 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

(¢) Subsection (2A) was inserted into section 67 by the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 (c. 10) section 35,
Schedule 4, paragraph 8.



Page 25

(standards committees)(a) in relation to each authority which established that joint standards
committee.

(5) In their application in relation to a joint standards committee, the enactments mentioned in
sub-paragraphs (a) to (f) shall have effect in accordance with those sub-paragraphs—

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

4]

nothing in Part 3 of the Act or in any regulations made under that Part, shall require a
joint standards committee to give any notification or document relating to an allegation of
misconduct to any parish council except where that joint standards committee is
considering a matter relating to a member of that parish council;

nothing in any regulations made under Part 3 of the Act shall authorise the inclusion, in
the membership of the joint standards committee, of a member of the executive of more
than one of the authorities which has established the joint standards committee;

section 53(4)(a) of the Act shall be treated as requiring at least one member from each
authority establishing the joint standards committee to be a member of the joint standards
committee;

regulation 5(1) of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008(b) shall be
treated as authorising the authorities establishing the joint standards committee to appoint
independent members separately or jointly in accordance with the terms of reference
agreed under regulation 15 of these Regulations, and—

(1) if such appointments are made separately, the requirements of regulation 5(1) apply
in respect of each authority;

(i1) if such appointments are made jointly, the requirements of regulation 5(1) apply in
respect of the authorities jointly;

regulation 7(3) of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 shall be treated
as requiring at least one member of any of the authorities establishing the joint standards
committee to be present where a joint standards committee discharges any function
specified in an enactment mentioned in that provision; and

regulation 7(4) of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 shall be treated
as requiring at least one member of a parish council for which any of the authorities
establishing the joint standards committee is responsible, to be present where a joint
standards committee discharges any function specified in an enactment mentioned in that
provision.

Terms of reference of joint standards committees

15.—(1) All of the authorities which together establish a joint standards committee must agree
the terms of reference of the joint standards committee and must send a statement which sets out
those terms of reference and any revision of those terms of reference, to the Standards Board.

(2) The terms of reference specified in paragraph (1) must—

(2)
(b)
©)

(d)

(e)

identify the functions which are to be discharged by the joint standards committee;
make provision for the administrative arrangements of the joint standards committee;

specify, for each authority that is involved in the establishment of the joint standards
committee, which committee is the standards committee to which written allegations
under section 57A(1) of the Act may be sent;

specify the number of members to be appointed to the joint standards committee by the
authorities establishing that committee and make provision for the terms of office of those
members;

make provision for the appointment of members, by the joint standards committee, to
sub-committees of that committee;

(a) There has been an amendment to section 53 which is not relevant to these regulations.
(b) SI2008 No. 1085.



Page 26

(f) specify what provision is made for the payment of allowances to members of the joint
standards committee;

(g) make provision for the procedure for an authority to withdraw from the joint standards
committee upon service of notice.

(3) The expenses incurred by a joint standards committee shall be defrayed by the authorities
establishing that committee in such proportions as they may agree or in case of disagreement by a
single arbitrator agreed on by the appointing authorities.

PART 4
DISPENSATIONS

Interpretation

16. In this Part—

“dispensation” means such a dispensation as is mentioned in section 81(4) of the Act
(disclosure and registration of members interests etc);

“mandatory provisions” means the mandatory provisions of a model code of conduct which
for the time being applies to an authority;

“meeting” includes any meeting of an authority, of the executive of the authority, of any
committee or sub-committee of the authority or its executive, of any joint committee or sub-
committee of a joint committee, or of any area committee;

“member” means a member or co-opted member of an authority or a councillor appointed
under section 16A of the Local Government Act 1972 (appointed councillors)(a).

Circumstances in which dispensations may be granted

17.—(1) The standards committee of an authority may, subject to paragraph (2) below, grant a
dispensation to a member in the following circumstances—

(a) where the transaction of business of the authority would, but for the grant of any other
dispensation in relation to that business, on each occasion on which the dispensation
would apply, otherwise be impeded by, or as a result of, the mandatory provisions
because—

(1) the number of members of the authority prohibited from voting on the business of
the authority at a meeting exceeds 50% of those members that, but for the granting of
any dispensations relating to that business, would otherwise be entitled to vote on
that business; or

(i1) the number of members prohibited from voting on the business of the authority at a
meeting would, but for the granting of any dispensations relating to that business,
upset the political balance of that meeting to such an extent as to prejudice the
outcome of voting in that meeting;

(b) the member has submitted to the standards committee a written request for a dispensation
explaining why it is desirable; and

(c) the standards committee concludes that having regard to the matters mentioned in sub-
paragraph (a) above, the written request made pursuant to sub-paragraph (b) above, and to
any other relevant circumstances of the case, it is appropriate to grant the dispensation.

(2) Nothing in paragraph (1) above shall permit a dispensation to be granted—

(a) 1972 c. 70. Section 16A was inserted by section 76(4) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007 (c. 28).



Page 27

(a) 1in respect of participation in business of the authority conducted more than four years
after the date on which the dispensation is granted; or

(b) where the effect of the mandatory provisions from which a dispensation is sought is
that—

(1) a member is prohibited from voting on a matter at a meeting of an overview and
scrutiny committee of an authority relating to a decision made by any body of which
that person was a member at the time the decision was taken; or

(i) a member of the authority’s executive is prohibited from exercising functions which
are the responsibility of the executive of the authority and which would otherwise be
discharged by that member solely.

Records of dispensations

18. The standards committee of an authority must ensure that—
(a) the existence, duration and nature of any dispensation is recorded in writing; and

(b) such record is kept with the register of interests established and maintained under section
81(1) of the Act.

Revocation

19. The Relevant Authorities (Standards Committees) (Dispensations) Regulations 2002(a) are
revoked.

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government
John Healey

Minister of State
18th May 2009 Department for Communities and Local Government

(a) SI2002 No. 339.

10



Page 28

EXPLANATORY NOTE
(This note is not part of the Regulations)

Section 53 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the Act”) requires relevant authorities in England
and Wales (defined in section 49(6) of the Act) to establish standards committees to exercise
functions conferred under Part 3 of the Act and Part 1 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (“the 1989 Act”).

Section 57A of the Act enables people to make written allegations to the standards committee of a
relevant authority in England that a member or co-opted member (or former member or former co-
opted member) of the authority has failed to comply with the authority’s code of conduct. Section
57B of the Act makes provision for reviews of decisions by standards committees to take no
action in respect of an allegation. Section 57C makes provision for information to be given to the
subject of an allegation by the standards committee. The Standards Committee (England)
Regulations 2008 (SI2008/1085) make provision for dealing with such allegations.

Section 81 of the Act requires the mandatory provisions of a model code of conduct applicable to
relevant authorities to prevent or restrict the participation of a member or co-opted member of a
relevant authority in any business in which that person has an interest which that person is
required to register in the authority’s register of members’ interests. Subsection (5) of that section
enables the making of regulations to prescribe circumstances in which standards committees may
grant dispensations to permit a member or co-opted member to participate in business
notwithstanding the existence of an interest.

These Regulations make further provision in respect of standards committees. Part 2 provides for
the Standards Board for England (“the Standards Board”) to give a direction to a standards
committee to suspend its functions under sections 57A(2) to (4), 57B(4) and 57C(2) to (4) (“the
initial assessment functions”) and to provide for those functions to be exercised either by the
Standards Board or by the standards committee of another authority. Part 3 makes provision
enabling relevant authorities to establish joint standards committees with other relevant authorities
to discharge any or all of their functions under Part 3 of the Act or Part 1 of the 1989 Act. Part 4
revokes the Relevant Authorities (Standards Committees) (Dispensations) Regulations 2002 (SI
2002/339) and replaces them with new provisions.

Regulations 1 and 2 contain citation, commencement, application and interpretation provisions.

Regulation 3 prescribes the circumstances in which the Standards Board may exercise the power
in section 57D(1) of the Act to give a direction which has the effect of suspending the initial
assessment functions of standards committees. The circumstances are:—

— the standards committee has failed to have regard to guidance issued by the Standards
Board;

— the standards committee has failed to comply with a direction issued by the Standards
Board;

— the standards committee or monitoring officer has failed to carry out functions in relation
to the conduct of members within a reasonable time or in a reasonable manner; or

— the authority or standards committee has invited the Standards Board to give a direction.
Regulation 4 prescribes the circumstances in which the Standards Board may revoke a direction.

Regulations 5 to 8 make provision as to the process for the giving of a direction to a standards
committee and for the amendment to, or revocation of, a direction. They also impose an obligation
on the Standards Board to give standards committees the opportunity to make representations and
to take account of those representations before giving a direction.

Regulations 9 to 11 apply provisions in Part 3 of the Act and in the Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008 with some modifications, in situations when a direction under section
57D(1) is in force. Regulation 9 applies when the direction specifies the Standards Board as the
body which performs the initial assessment functions of the standards committee which has

11



Page 29

received the direction. Regulation 10 applies where the direction specifies the standards committee
of another relevant authority as the body which performs those initial assessment functions.
Regulation 11 applies to reviews of decisions by standards committees, or the Standards Board to
take no action in respect of an allegation, when a direction is in force.

Regulation 12 requires standards committees which have been given a direction suspending their
initial assessment functions, to respond to consultation by a Local Commissioner or the Public
Services Ombudsman for Wales by providing details of the body which has taken over the initial
assessment of allegation functions.

Regulation 13 makes provision as to service of documents.

Regulations 14 and 15 enable two or more relevant authorities to establish joint standards
committees to perform any functions under Part 3 of the Act or regulations made under the Act or
the function of the grant and supervision of exemptions from political restrictions imposed by Part
1 of the 1989 Act. They permit relevant authorities to decide which functions they wish to be
exercised by a joint standards committee and require terms of reference to be agreed and sent to
the Standards Board specifying which functions are to be exercised by the joint standards
committee. They also provide that other enactments applicable to standards committees apply,
with necessary modifications, to functions performed by joint standards committees and specify
how certain modifications are to apply.

Regulations 16 and 17 prescribe the circumstances in which standards committees may grant
dispensations to members or co-opted members who would otherwise be prohibited from
engaging in the business of a relevant authority. If a member or co-opted member acts in
accordance with the grant of a dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the
mandatory provisions of a model code of conduct issued under section 50(1) of the Act is not a
failure to comply with the authority’s code of conduct.

The circumstances in which a standards committee may grant a dispensation are:—

— where, but for the grant of any other dispensation in relation to that business, more than
50% of the members who would otherwise be entitled to vote at a meeting are prohibited
from voting; or

— where, but for the grant of any other dispensation in relation to that business, the number
of members that are prohibited from voting at a meeting would upset the political balance
of the meeting.

Regulation 17(2) provides that a dispensation can only be granted in respect of business conducted
during the period of 4 years after the date on which the dispensation is granted. It also specifies
that the circumstances in which dispensations can be granted do not extend to allowing a member
of an overview and scrutiny committee to participate in the scrutiny of a decision in which that
member was involved, or to allow an individual member of the executive of an authority to
exercise executive functions solely.

Regulation 18 requires standards committees to keep records of dispensations granted under
regulation 17. Regulation 19 revokes the Relevant Authorities (Standards Committees)
(Dispensations) Regulations 2000.

@ Crown copyright 2009

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo, Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of Acts of Parliament.

£5.50

E4294 5/2009 194294T 19585



Agenda Iltem 9 Page 30

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

STANDARDS BOARD GUIDANCE ON “OTHER ACTION”
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider recent Guidance published by the Standards Board for

England.
This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

Q) That the report be noted and that Members consider whether they wish to
amend the Assessment Criteria for “other action” in the light of the Guidance.

1.0 Report

1.1 As Members will be aware, when an Assessment Sub-Committee considers a
complaint, the options open to it are to take no action, to refer the matter to the
Standards Board, or to refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer. If the Sub-
Committee refers a complaint to the Monitoring Officer, it can direct the Monitoring
Officer to investigate the matter or to take steps other than carrying out an
investigation. This is known as “other action”.

1.2 The Standards Board has recently issued new Guidance for Standards Committees
on “other action”, and this is appended to the report at Appendix 1.

1.3 In the light of the new Guidance, the Committee may wish to consider amending its
Assessment Criteria for “other action”. Suggested amendments are set out (with the
amendments tracked) in Appendix 2.

2.0 Details of Consultation

2.1 There has been no consultation.

3.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

3.1 The report is for noting, although the Committee is asked to consider making
amendments to the Assessment Criteria.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)



Page 31

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




OTHER
ACTION
GUIDANCE




29/04/2009

Page 33

introduction

what is other action?

what might other action involve?

deciding on other action

when is other action appropriate

adjournment

role of the monitoring officer

consideration of the monitoring officer’s report
what if other action does not work?

why other action closes the opportunity to investigate

0 N O A OONDN

10
11
12
13

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 1




Page 34

1) This guidance on other action is u

aimed at members of standards
committees. It is not mandatory but
has been written to help describe
what other action is, when it might
be used, and how the process can
be managed.

2) Advice for monitoring officers on
carrying out other action is available
in the Standards Board’s guidance,
Local Investigations and Other
Action and How to Conduct an
Investigation.

3) The Standards Board’s key
messages on other action are:

B Complaints should not be
referred for other action when an
investigation is in the public
interest, when an allegation
challenges the member’s
honesty or integrity, or where if
proven to be true, the alleged
conduct would undoubtedly
warrant a sanction.

B A referral for other action closes
the opportunity to investigate.

B A decision to refer a complaint
for other action makes no finding
of fact, and the action decided on
must not imply that the subject of
the complaint has breached the
Code of Conduct.

B Assessment sub-committees
cannot direct the subject
member or any other party to
take action. The direction is to
the monitoring officer.

2 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

Although there is no formal route
for dealing with a member who
refuses to comply with other
action, failure to cooperate may
amount to bringing the authority
into disrepute.

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

4)

5)

6)

Page 35

An assessment sub-committee has
three options when dealing with a
complaint that a member has failed
or may have failed to comply with
the Code of Conduct. The Local
Government Act 2000, as amended,
states that it can decide to refer the
complaint to the monitoring officer of
the authority concerned, refer it to
the Standards Board, or take no
action.

If the assessment sub-committee
decides to refer a complaint to the
monitoring officer, it can direct them
to investigate the matter.
Alternatively, it can direct them to
take steps other than carrying out
an investigation. This is known as
other action.

Generally, there are two indicators
for other action. The first is when
there is evidence of poor
understanding of the Code of
Conduct and/or the authority’s
procedures. The second indicator
for other action is when
relationships within the authority as
a whole have broken down to such
an extent that it becomes very
difficult to conduct the business of
the council.

7)

8)

The Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008 explain
that the steps a standards
committee can direct a monitoring
officer to take are:

B arranging for the member to
attend a training course

B arranging for the member and
complainant to engage in a
process of conciliation

B any other steps (not including an
investigation) which appear
appropriate

Suggestions as to types of training
courses a member might attend,
and other steps a standards
committee might consider
appropriate, are listed in the

next section (What might other
action involve?).

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 3




9)

10)

Page 36

The Standards Committee 11)
(England) Regulations 2008

specifically provide that a referral for
other action may consist of a

direction to the monitoring officer to
arrange for the member to attend a
training course. Training may be in
anything the assessment sub-

committee deems appropriate, such

as:

B chairing skills

B working with external bodies and
partnerships

governance issues
the Code of Conduct
council procedures and protocols

12)

legal matters
planning and licensing
working with officers

use of council resources

In general, other action may take
the form of directing the monitoring
officer to arrange for the:

B redrafting of council procedures
or policies

B training of members of the
council as a whole

B mentoring of a member or
members, or whole council

B management of conflict
B development of council protocols

B implementation of a council
complaints procedure

4 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

A referral for other action does not
mean that the member has been
found to have done anything wrong
(see the next section ‘Deciding to
take other action’). It is therefore
very important that the action
proposed does not imply this. Other
action cannot, for example, take the
form of requiring the subject
member to apologise. Of course, in
those cases where the member has
admitted the breach and offered an
apology, the assessment sub-
committee may decide that no
further action is necessary.

It is particularly important to
remember that an assessment
sub-committee can only direct a
monitoring officer to take other
action. It has no power to direct
anyone else to do so.

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

13)

14)

15)

Page 37

A decision to refer a complaint for 16)
other action — like all assessment
decisions — does not involve making
any findings of fact. All parties
should understand that a decision to
take other action means that no
conclusion has been reached about
what happened. Furthermore, no
decision has been made about
whether the subject member failed
to comply with the Code.

Similarly, everyone involved in a
decision to take other action must
understand that the purpose of such
a referral is not to find out whether
the member breached the Code of
Conduct. This is regardless of how  17)
simple it may be to establish the
facts. A decision to direct the
monitoring officer to take other
action is an alternative to an
investigation. It cannot ever result in
a finding that the member has or
has not failed to comply with the
Code.

The assessment sub-committee
needs to be satisfied that even if the 18)
specific allegation had occurred as
alleged, it would not be behaviour
which would necessarily require the
subject member to face one of the
sanctions it could impose. This
excludes training, which can be
other action decided on at
assessment stage, and a sanction
following a hearing. The
assessment sub-committee should
also be satisfied that other action
could assist the proper functioning
of the council.

Other action is not intended to be a
quick and easy means of dealing
with matters which the assessment
sub-committee considers to be too
trivial or time-consuming to
investigate. Genuinely trivial cases
are better dealt with by a decision to
take no action. While other action
can be a cost-effective way of
getting a matter resolved, it is not a
quick-fix. Furthermore, other action
should not be seen as a routine or
cheap way of disposing of an
allegation, as it can sometimes be a
drawn out, costly and time-
consuming process.

Standards committees should take
care to avoid it appearing to the
complainant that deciding to take
other action is sweeping matters
under the carpet. The decision
should demonstrate to the
complainant that their complaint is
being addressed and being taken
seriously, although perhaps as part
of a wider issue.

Importantly, if a complaint merits
being investigated, then it should be
referred for investigation. For
example, complaints should not be
referred for other action when an
investigation would be in the public
interest. Other action should also be
avoided where the allegation
fundamentally challenges the
member’s honesty or integrity. It
should additionally be avoided where
the allegation, if proven, would
warrant any of the sanctions (apart

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 5




19)

20)

Page 38

from training) available to a
standards committee after a hearing.

Assessment sub-committees must
not refer an allegation for other
action without consulting the
monitoring officer, who will often be
present at the assessment meeting.
If the monitoring officer is not
present, and has not given any
indication of their views on other
action, the assessment meeting
may need to be adjourned.

The monitoring officer may be able
to advise the assessment sub-
committee how viable the proposed
other action is, by providing
information on the resources
available to them. They may be able
to tell the assessment sub-committee
how much any proposed other
action might cost. They might also
be able to advise whether, for
example, the authority has access
to the facilities or resources needed
to accomplish it, such as trained
mediators.

6 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

21)

22)

23)

Page 39

The first stage in assessing a
complaint is to determine whether it
is within jurisdiction. In other words,
the assessment sub-committee
needs to decide whether, if what the
complainant alleges were true, the
Code of Conduct would apply. If the
Code would not apply to the alleged
conduct, the only decision an
assessment sub-committee is able
to make is to take no action. Other
action will never be appropriate in
these cases.

In general, the Standards Board
believes that other action is most
beneficial when used to deal with
systemic problems rather than
individual ones. The action
proposed does not have to be
limited to the subject of the
complaint. Several members, or
indeed a whole authority, could be
included in the action the monitoring
officer is asked to take.

Matters which standards
committees might consider referring
for other action include:

B the same particular breach of the
Code by many members,
indicating poor understanding of
the Code and the authority’s
procedures

B a general breakdown of
relationships, including those
between members and officers,
as evidenced by a pattern of
allegations of minor disrespect,
harassment or bullying to such
an extent that it becomes difficult
to conduct the business of the
council

B misunderstanding of procedures
or protocols

B misleading, unclear or
misunderstood advice from
officers

B |ack of experience or training
B interpersonal conflict

B allegations and retaliatory
allegations from the same
members

B allegations about how formal
meetings are conducted

B allegations that may be
symptomatic of governance
problems within the council,
which are more significant than
the allegations in themselves

We advise standards committees to
draw up assessment criteria which
detail the matters they will take into
account when deciding what action,
if any, to take. Every decision to
take other action — like all
assessment decisions — can then be
made with reference to these
criteria.

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 7




25)

26)

27)

Page 40

Some assessment sub-committees
are reluctant to refer a complaint for
other action without knowing
whether the subject member and
other members of the authority will
cooperate with the proposed
approach.

One way of dealing with this issue is
by adjourning the assessment of a
complaint that the assessment sub-
committee considers might be
suitable for other action. The
standards committee can then ask
the monitoring officer to find out
whether the member or members
will cooperate. Although this option
is not specifically provided for by the
legislation, we do not consider that it
is prohibited. Meetings may also be
adjourned to enable the monitoring
officer to find out more information
about the complaint.

It is up to each authority to decide
whether their assessment of a
particular complaint should be
adjourned. They should consider the
advantages and disadvantages of
adjournment when making this
decision. They should also bear in
mind that we advise that
assessment decisions should be
made within an average of 20
working days, and that an
adjournment may mean that that the
average assessment time
increases.

8 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

28)

29)

Advantages of adjournment are:

B Those sitting on the assessment
sub-committee will know what
the members think about the
proposed solution, and may
therefore be more confident in
making their decision.

B Members may be likely to
cooperate if they are made
aware of the options available.

B When members indicate that the
action would be ineffective, the
sub-committee still have the
option of deciding to refer the
complaint for investigation.

B Further information obtained by
the monitoring officer may mean
that the complaint is effectively
resolved, enabling the sub-
committee to decide to take no
action.

Disadvantages of adjournment are:

B Finding out members’ views runs
the risk of putting the decision
about what action to take into the
hands of the member, rather
than the sub-committee.

B The authority of the standards
committee may be undermined if
other action is agreed through
negotiations between the
monitoring officer and the
member or members.

B By making further enquiries, the
monitoring officer may end up
starting an investigation before
the assessment decision is
made.

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

30)

Page 41

B The member or members may
try to pass on more information
to the monitoring officer, to
persuade the sub-committee to
take no action.

As an alternative to adjourning the
assessment meeting, the standards
committee could agree that the
monitoring officer seeks views on
other action when they receive a
complaint.

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 9




31)

32)

33)

Page 42

When a matter has been referred for
other action, it is the monitoring
officer’s duty to give notice to the
relevant parties. These relevant
parties are:

B the subject member

B the person who made the
allegation

B the standards committee of any
other authority concerned

B any parish council concerned

If the standards committee issues a
decision notice that goes to all these
parties, the Standards Board
considers that the monitoring
officer’s responsibility is met.

Whoever notifies the parties of the
decision should take care over how
the decision is conveyed. It is
important that the wording does not
imply that the member is culpable. It
is also important that members do
not feel they have been found guilty
without an investigation of the
allegation. Note that both parties
could end up potentially feeling
dissatisfied. This is because
complainants and subject members
do not have the right to have the
decision to refer a matter for other
action reviewed under Section 57B
of the Local Government Act 2000.

10 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

34)

35)

36)

When a monitoring officer receives
a referral with a direction to take
other action, they must deal with it in
accordance with the direction. They
do not have discretion to take a
different course of action and should
make every attempt to ensure that
the action specified is carried out
successfully.

Information and advice for
monitoring officers on carrying out
other action is available in the
Standards Board’s guidance, Local
investigations and other action
and How to conduct an
investigation.

The monitoring officer must submit a
written report to the standards
committee within three months of
receiving the direction, or as soon
as possible after that. This report
must give details of the action taken
or the action proposed to comply
with the direction.

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

37)

38)

39)

Page 43

The standards committee or an
appropriate sub-committee should
consider the monitoring officer’s
report and decide whether it is
satisfied with the action described.
The meeting at which the report is
considered is subject to the general
notice and publicity requirements
under regulation 8 of the Standards
Committee (England) Regulations
2008.

The monitoring officer’s report can
be considered by the same
members who initially assessed the
complaint, by another sub-
committee, or by the standards
committee as a whole. This is a
decision to be made by each
authority, and will depend on the
way in which the committee has
been set up, what sub-committees it
has and the terms of reference of
each body.

The advantage of the same
members considering the report is
that they will be aware of the details
of the original complaint. However,
some authorities may consider that
convening a sub-committee simply
for this purpose is not a good use of
time and resources. They might
instead choose to include
consideration of the monitoring
officer’s report as an item on the
agenda of the regular meeting of the
standards committee.

40)

41)

42)

If the standards committee or sub-
committee is satisfied with the
action described in the monitoring
officer’s report, it should give notice
of this to all of the following:

B the subject member

B the person who made the
allegation

B the standards committee of any
other authority involved

B any parish council concerned
The matter is then closed.

If the standards committee or sub-
committee is not satisfied, it must
give another direction to the
monitoring officer, which must again
be to take some kind of other action.
The standards committee cannot at
this stage decide that the matter
should be investigated. This is
discussed further in the section
below.

If the report describes action which
has been proposed but not yet
taken, the standards committee
should decide whether this is
satisfactory. If it has doubts about
whether the action will take place, it
should consider whether or not to
give a further direction to the
monitoring officer. The standards
committee or sub-committee may
also consider making a further
direction where the report indicates
that the member has refused to
cooperate, has done so unwillingly
or inadequately, or has not engaged
with the process.

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 11




43)

44)

45)

Page 44

Each time a standards committee or  46)
sub-committee directs a monitoring
officer to take other action, the

monitoring officer must submit a

written report detailing the action

taken or proposed. If dissatisfied,

the standards committee can direct

the monitoring officer to take further

other action.

In theory, if a standards committee  47)
continues to be dissatisfied, it can
continue to issue directions until it is
satisfied. However, standards
committees should be proportionate
and reasonable in their directions.
We believe that the process should
be drawn to a close after a limited
number of attempts by the
monitoring officer to bring about
other action — even where this has
not occurred in accordance with the
direction.

There is no formal route for dealing
with a member who categorically
refuses to comply with other action.
However, the Standards Board
believes that deliberate and
continued failure to cooperate with a
monitoring officer who is trying to
carry out the directions of a
standards committee may
potentially amount to conduct which
brings the office of councillor into
disrepute. Furthermore, an
assessment sub-committee may
take this into account when deciding
what action to take if they are
assessing a complaint about a
member who has previously failed
to cooperate.

12 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

If a standards committee receives a
complaint that a member did not
cooperate with other action in
relation to a previous complaint,
they should only assess the
complaint about the failure to
cooperate. They should not take into
account the conduct which led to the
original complaint.

If the complaint is accepted for
investigation then it is vitally
important that any investigation
focuses on the lack of cooperation
and not the original complaint that
led to the other action. Otherwise
there is a danger that the original
complaint will be resurrected. This is
particularly important where the
member says that the lack of
cooperation was because they had
done nothing wrong.

29/04/2009



29/04/2009

48)

49)

Page 45

Once an assessment sub-committee  50)
has decided to refer a matter for
other action, this becomes the way
forward in that particular case. If a
standards committee is not satisfied
that the action taken has not
achieved the aim of the direction to
take other action, it cannot then
decide the matter should be
investigated. The assessment sub-
committee needs to be clear at the
outset that should other action be
unsuccessful or only partially
successful, that it would still then
remain the preferred course

of action.

51)

The legislation is clear on this issue.
Once an allegation is referred under
Section 57A(2) of the Local
Government Act 2000 to the
monitoring officer to take steps other
than investigation, those steps are
the ones referred to in regulation
13(3) of the Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008. They
are limited to arranging for training,
a process of conciliation or such
other steps — not including
investigation — which the standard
committee considers to be
appropriate. There is no power that
allows the case to be referred on for
investigation if these options under
regulation 13(3) are perceived to
have failed.

52)

Regulation 14(1) of the same
regulations says that regulation 14
applies only if regulation 13 is not
applied. If other action has been
attempted, regulation 13 has been
applied.

As well as being set out in statute,
there are sound reasons why
complaints which have been
referred for other action should not
then be investigated. Firstly, there
are difficulties in deciding why the
action has ‘failed’; whether it has
failed and if so, why an investigation
is thought to be needed. This
subjective judgment has the
potential to increase the
complainant or the subject
member’s dissatisfaction with the
process. In some circumstances, it
may also risk deliberate non-
cooperation with the action
prescribed in order to secure an
investigation.

An investigation should not be
viewed as something that can take
place after other action has been
attempted and is not to the
satisfaction of one of the parties.
There is a risk that other action will
not be taken seriously if it is seen
merely as a precursor to an
investigation.

OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 13




53)

Page 46

The issue of timeliness is also key
for all parties when dealing with an
allegation of misconduct. It is
questionable as to how fair the
process would be, for both the
subject member and complainant, if
it is extended for the duration of the
other action taking place and the
investigation that follows it. Where
other action is undertaken before an
investigation, there is the risk that
the case will be prejudiced.
Witnesses may become prejudiced,
there may be problems obtaining
evidence, and an investigation may
be jeopardised if the issues are
discussed in detail as part of a
mediation process.

14 OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE

29/04/2009



Page 47

Appendix 2

C. Circumstances where the Standards Committee may decide to refer the allegation to
the Monitoring Officer for training, conciliation or other steps as appear appropriate to
the Standards Commitiee

Note This approach may be appropriate where the Sub-Committee believes that the
conduct, Iif proven, may amount fo a failure to comply with the Code, and that some
action should be faken in response to the complaint. If this approach is taken, the
purpose of the action is NOT fo find out whether the subject member breached the
Code, and no conclusion will have been reached on whether the subject member failed
to comply with the Code. It should be noted that this approach may only be taken after
consultation with the Monitoring Officer

C1 Where the complaint suggests that there is a wider problem throughout the authority,
for example of a poor understanding of the Code of Conduct, or the Council's protocols
or procedures, and it is appropriate to extend the action to other members who are not
the subject of the complaint

C2 Where it is apparent that there is_a lack of expenénce or training, or where the
allegation if proven would not warrant any of the sanctions (apart from training) that

would be avanlable after a heannq —SH-bjth—ef—%he—&Hege{-leFH&FeiaH#eLy—mexpeHeneed—as

C3 Where the complaint indicates a general breakdown of relationships, including those

between members and officers, as evidenced by a pattern of allegations of minor
disrespect, harassment or bullying to such an extent that it is becoming difficuit to
conduct the business of the Council,

C4 Where _there appears to have been misleading, unclear or misunderstood advice
from officers,

C5 Where there are allegations and retaliatory allegations from the same members.

C6 Where there are allegations that may be symptomatic of governance problems within
the Council, which are more significant than the allegations in themselves.




Agenda Item 10 Page 48

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ANNUAL REVIEW OF REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise the Committee of the continuing monitoring of the registration of personal interests
by City and Parish Councillors.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS
Q) That the report be noted
1.0 Introduction

1.1 As Members are aware, there is a requirement in the Code of Conduct for any
changes to members’ interests to be notified to the Monitoring Officer within twenty
eight days. It is the Monitoring Officer's practice to undertake an annual review of
registrations.

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 At the end of April 2009, a letter was sent to all Members of the City Council
reminding them of the need to register any changes, and requesting either a signed
declaration to the effect that there has been no change, or the return of a completed
“change” form.

2.2 The letter requested a reply by the end of May 2009, by which time fifteen replies had
been received. However, the Monitoring Officer is aware that some appointments to
outside bodies, which need to be included in the register of interests, will not be
made until Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee have met in June. In
reminding Members of the need to reply, the Monitoring Officer has acknowledged
that those Members affected should wait until the relevant appointment have been
made. Information about the number of replies received will be updated at the
meeting.

2.3 With regard to the parish councils, by virtue of the very number of councillors and the
frequency of resignations and co-options, it is extremely difficult for the Monitoring
Officer to ensure that the register contains an up to date registration form completed
by each and every parish councillor. A check was undertaken last year, and in order



Page 49

to ensure that the registrations of parish councillors are kept up to date, the
Monitoring Officer has written to the clerks of all the parish councils within the district,
requesting them to draw to the attention of their councillors the requirement to
register any changes to their personal interests, and enclosing copies of the change
form.

2.4 It is hoped that these actions will ensure that city and parish councillors maintain
accurate register entries of their personal interests.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 The Committee is asked to note the report.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Registration of personal interests is a requirement of the Members’ Code of Conduct.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her role as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S. Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: ST




Agenda Item 11 Page 50

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING ALLEGATIONS OF
BREACH OF THE COUNCIL’'S PROTOCOLS
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider whether or not to amend its procedure for dealing with

complaints of breach of the Council’s protocols.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

Q) That the Committee consider whether or not to amend its procedure for dealing
with complaints of breach of the Council’s Protocols.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 A report considered by the Committee at its meeting in June 2008 is attached to this
report.

1.2 Having considered that report, the Committee resolved that any allegations of breach
of the Council’'s Protocols continue to be investigated by the Monitoring Officer, with
her report then being referred to the Standards Committee (or a Sub-Committee) in
accordance with the investigation, pre-hearing and hearing procedures adopted by
the Committee for Code of Conduct complaints. The Committee further resolved that
this be reviewed after twelve months. Minute 11 refers.

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 No allegations of breach of Protocol have been received in the last twelve months,
and the options open to the Committee remain as set out in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2
of the previous report.

2.2 The Monitoring Officer remains of the view that it would be simpler and preferable for
the time being to continue as at present, with the Monitoring Officer investigating any
complaint of alleged breach of Protocol, and the report then being considered in
accordance with the investigation, pre-hearing and hearing procedures. To have a
parallel, but inevitably different, assessment process for Protocol complaints would
appear to be unnecessarily bureaucratic.



Page 51

3.0 Details of Consultation
3.1 There has been no consultation.
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 The options open to the Committee are to maintain the current procedure or to
introduce a filtering process for allegations of breach of Protocol.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Page 52

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING ALLEGATIONS OF
BREACH OF THE COUNCIL'S PROTOCOLS

19th June 2008

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider the procedure to be followed for dealing with

allegations that a Member has failed to comply with one of the Council’s Protocols.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

1) That the Committee consider the procedure to be followed for dealing with
allegations that a Member has failed to comply with one of the Council’s
Protocols, and for the time being maintain the current procedure of
investigation by the Monitoring Officer, with the Monitoring Officer’'s report
then being considered in accordance with the investigation, pre-hearing and
hearing procedures.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council has a number of Protocols which supplement the Code of Conduct.
These are the Protocol on Planning, the Protocol on Member/Officer Relations and
the Protocol on Publicity for Allegations of breach of the Code of Conduct (referred to
elsewhere in this agenda).

1.2 The Terms of Reference of the Committee include dealing with allegations of breach
of the Protocols. However, the Protocols do not form part of the Code of Conduct,
and any breach does not therefore constitute a breach of the Code of Conduct. The
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) and the Standards
Committee (England) Regulations 2008 do not apply to complaints relating to the
Protocols, and the sanctions of the Committee in the event of a finding of breach of
Protocol would be limited to the “naming and shaming” of the member, or the offering
of advice to the member. It would also be open to the Committee to suggest more
general changes to working practices to prevent such a problem or complaint arising
in the future.

1.3 Whilst the Protocols are included in the Council’'s Constitution, they are generally for
internal use only, and it is anticipated that any allegation of breach would be made by



1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Page 53

another Member of the Council rather than by a member of the public. Over the past
few years, only one formal complaint of breach of Protocol has been received.

At its meeting on the 23rd February 2007, the Committee resolved that its procedure
for considering reports on investigations relating to alleged breaches of Protocol be
similar to the statutory procedure for considering reports on investigations initiated by
the Standards Board. That decision needs to be reviewed in the light of the new
arrangements for Code of Conduct complaints.

Proposal Details

The decision of the 23rd February 2007 presupposed that all complaints of alleged
breach of Protocol would be investigated by the Monitoring Officer. It would be
possible to continue on this basis, with any complaint received being investigated by
the Monitoring Officer, and her report then being referred to the Standards
Committee (or a Sub-Committee) in accordance with the investigation, pre-hearing
and hearing procedures adopted by the Committee for Code of Conduct complaints.

However, this would mean that there would be no filtering process for breach of
Protocol complaints as there is for Code of Conduct complaints. The consequence
would be that all breach of Protocol complaints would be investigated. The
Committee might wish to introduce a filtering process, along the lines of the
assessment process for Code of Conduct complaints. However, this could not be the
same process, as the options available on assessment would not be the same, and
the ordinary access to information rules would apply to any assessment sub-
committee dealing with Protocol breaches.

The Monitoring Officer would recommend that, in view of the infrequency of Protocol
complaints to date, it would be simpler and preferable for the time being to continue
as at present, with the Monitoring Officer investigating any complaint, and the report
then being considered in accordance with the investigation, pre-hearing and hearing
procedures. To have a parallel, but inevitably different, assessment process for
Protocol complaints would appear to be unnecessarily bureaucratic and complicated,
especially at this early stage when we have no experience of how the statutory
assessment filter will work in practice. The position could then be reviewed in the
future

Consultation

The Monitoring Officer has consulted other Monitoring Officers on how they intend to
deal with breaches of Protocol. It would appear that many authorities do not have
protocols or have never had occasion to consider allegations of breach of Protocol,
and they do not therefore see this as an issue for them. The few that have
considered the issue are intending not to apply any assessment/filter process to
Protocol complaints.

Options

The options open to the Committee are as set out in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 above.
The Monitoring Officer would recommend for the time being the option set out in 2.1.

Conclusion

The Committee’s views are sought.



Page 54

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted and have no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her role as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S. Taylor
Telephone: 01524 582025

None E-mail: sTaylorelancaster.gov.uk
Ref: ST




Page 55 Agenda ltem 12

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

REVIEW OF COMPLAINT DOCUMENTATION AND
ASSESSMENT CRITERIA AND INVESTIGATION AND
HEARING PROCEDURES
18th June 2009

Report of the Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider whether any amendments are needed to the forms and
procedures approved in May and June 2008 following the implementation of the new regime

for complaints to be made locally.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

Q) That the Committee consider whether it wishes to make any amendments to
the documents attached to the report.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Following the implementation in May 2008 of the new regime for Code of Conduct
complaints to be made and dealt with locally, the Committee in May and June 2008
approved its complaints form and guidance, assessment procedure and criteria and
investigation, pre-hearing and hearing procedures. These have now been in place
for a year, and it would seem an appropriate time for the Committee to consider
whether any amendments need to be made to the documents in the light of the
experience of the last year.

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 Attached to this report are the following documents:
Complaint Form

Guidance for Complainants

Assessment Procedure and Criteria
Investigation Procedure

Pre- hearing Procedure (including Forms A-D)
Hearing Procedure

2.2 The documents have been slightly amended to incorporate decisions of the
Committee over the last year, for example to emphasise on the complaint form that
full information is required, to provide for the Monitoring Officer to inform a subject



2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Page 56

member about a complaint if it is clear that the press are aware of the member’'s
identity, and to enable the original Assessment Sub-Committee to consider a report
on “other action”.  As part of another item on this agenda, the Committee has the
opportunity to consider amendments to the Assessment Criteria for “other action”.

Members are asked to consider whether any further amendments are needed to the
documents. It should perhaps be noted that the suitability of the investigation, pre-
hearing and hearing procedures, has not yet been tested, as until recently no
complaint had been referred for investigation.

Details of Consultation

There has been no consultation.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

It is open to the Committee to make any appropriate amendments to the documents.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her capacity as adviser to the
Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor

None

Telephone: 01524 582025
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:



Page 57

LANCASTER

ClIY COUNCIE

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
COMPLAINT FORM

Before completing this form, you are advised to read the Council’s
“Guidance on Making a Complaint to the Standards Committee.” This is
available on the Council’s website or on request from the Monitoring
Officer, tel 01524 582025.

Your details

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details

Title:

First name:

Last name:

Address:

Daytime telephone:

Evening telephone:

Mobile telephone:

Email address:

N

. Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:

Member of the public
An elected or co-opted member of an authority
An independent member of the standards committee

NN

Member of Parliament



Page 58

[] Local authority monitoring officer

[] Other council officer or authority employee

[] Other ( )

Making your complaint

3. Please provide us with the name of the member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their authority:

Title First name Last name Council or authority name

4. Please explain in this section (and/or on separate sheets) what the
member has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If
you are complaining about more than one member you should clearly
explain what each individual person has done that you believe
breaches the Code of Conduct. Before completing this section, you
are recommended to read the section headed “”How you should
set out your complaint” in the Council’s “Guidance on making a
complaint to the Standards Committee”.

Please provide us with the details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form. It is important
that you provide as much information as possible at this stage




Page 59




Page 60

Only complete this next section if you are requesting that your
identity is kept confidential (please see Guidance Notes)

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:




Page 61

Equality Monitoring information

We are required to monitor ethnic or national origin to ensure that we do not
inadvertently discriminate against members of a particular group. It would,
therefore be helpful if you would complete the ethnic monitoring section of the
form, although this is not compulsory.

The answers will be removed and kept entirely separate from your complaint
and will be completely confidential. They will be used for statistical purposes
only, and individuals will not be identified.

Your ethnic origin

Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British

Chinese
White: British
White: Irish
White: Other




Page 62

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL
GUIDANCE ON MAKING A COMPLAINT TO THE STANDARDS
COMMITTEE

This Guidance should be read before completing the Lancaster City
Council Standards Committee Complaint Form.

If you have any queries, please contact the Council’s Monitoring Officer,
Mrs Sarah Taylor, telephone 01524 582025, or emalil
STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk

Is this the correct form?

The points listed below will help you decide whether this is the correct form to
use when making your complaint.

If you submit a complaint, an Assessment Sub-Committee of the Standards
Committee will make the decision about what action, if any, to take.

In order for the Sub-Committee to consider your complaint:

= Your complaint must be about one or more named members of the
following authorities: Lancaster City Council or a parish or town
council within its district. These are Arkholme-with-Cawood, Bolton-
le-Sands, Caton-with-Littledale, Claughton, Cockerham, Ellel,
Gressingham, Halton-with-Aughton, Heaton-with-Oxcliffe, Hornby-
with-Farleton, Ireby and Leck, Melling-with-Wrayton, Middleton,
Morecambe, Nether Kellet, Over Kellet, Over Wyresdale, Overton,
Quernmore, Scotforth, Silverdale, Slyne-with-Hest, Tatham,
Thurnham, Warton, Wennington, Whittington, Wray-with-Botton,
Yealand Conyers and Yealand Redmayne parish councils and
Carnforth Town Council.

= Your complaint must be about conduct that occurred while the
member(s) complained about were in office. Conduct of an
individual before they were elected, co-opted or appointed to the
authority, or after they have resigned or otherwise ceased to be a
member, cannot be considered by the Assessment Sub-Committee

= Your complaint must be that the member(s) has, or may have,
breached the relevant Code of Conduct. A copy of the City
Council’'s Code of Conduct is available on the Council’'s website
www.lancaster.gov.uk/complaints and frequently asked questions
about  the Code of Conduct are available at
www.standardsboard.gov.uk. You may also contact the Monitoring
Officer, contact details above, if you require further information or a
copy of the Code of Conduct adopted by any of the parish councils
within the district. These are also available from the relevant parish
or town council clerk.




Page 63

= Your complaint must be in writing. If a disability prevents you from
making your complaint in writing you may contact the Monitoring
Officer (contact details as above) for assistance. We can also help
if English is not your first language. We may be able to transcribe
your oral complaint, and produce a written copy for approval by you
or your representative.

What complaints cannot be made on this form?

Complaints about Council employees, or about a decision or action of the
Council or one of its committees, or about a service provided by the Council
or about the Council’s procedures, do not fall within the jurisdiction of the
Standards Committee. These are dealt with within the Council’s general
complaints procedure, and further information on this is available on the
Council’'s website www.lancaster.gov.uk/complaints or from Information and
Customer Services.

What happens once you submit your complaint?

When you submit your complaint we will write to you to let you know we have
received it. At this stage the member(s) that you are complaining about will
not be informed of the complaint, and we would ask that you should keep the
matter confidential and not make your complaint public.

The Assessment Sub-Committee, which is chaired by a person independent
of the City Council and of the parish and town councils, will meet to consider
your complaint. This will happen as soon as possible, and in any event within
an average of 20 working days of the date we receive your complaint.
Meetings of the Assessment Sub-Committee are ‘closed’, which means that
you will not be able to attend. It is therefore very important that you set your
complaint out clearly and provide at the outset all the information you wish the
Assessment Sub-Committee to consider.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will decide what action, if any to take, using
referral criteria  which are available on the Council's website
www.lancaster.gov.uk/complaints or from the Monitoring Officer. The Sub-
Committee may decide to refer your complaint for investigation or for other
action, or may decide not to take any action on your complaint

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides not to refer your complaint for
investigation or other action, we will inform you in writing, within five working
days, giving you the reasons for this decision. We will also inform the
member(s) you have complained about, and, if appropriate the parish or town
clerk. We will also explain your right to ask for the decision to be reviewed.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides to refer your complaint for
investigation or other action, we will inform you in writing. At the same time we
write to you, we will also write to the member(s) you have complained about
and the parish or town clerk (if applicable). We will send these letters within
five working days of the Assessment Sub-Committee reaching its decision.
The decision of the Assessment Sub-Committee is made available for public



Page 64

inspection once the member the complaint is about has been given a
summary of the complaint. In very limited situations the member may not be
given this summary immediately and if so any public inspection will not
happen until the member does get the summary.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee refers your complaint for investigation, you
will be contacted by the Investigating Officer. In very serious cases, the
Assessment Sub-Committee may ask the Standards Board for England to
carry out the investigation.

What is meant by ‘other action’?

The Assessment Sub-Committee may decide to refer your complaint for ‘other
action’ instead of referring it for investigation. Other action is a deliberately
broad term that may include options such as requiring the person you have
complained about to apologise, or undertake training or mediation. The
Assessment Sub-Committee will carefully consider the circumstances
surrounding your complaint when deciding whether other action is
appropriate. If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides to refer your
complaint for other action we will explain what this involves.

How should you set out your complaint?

It is very important that you set your complaint out fully and clearly, and
provide all the information at the outset. You should also provide any
documents or other material that you wish the Assessment Sub-Committee to
consider, where possible.

We recommend that you use our complaint form or provide a covering note
summarising what you are complaining about, especially if your complaint
includes a lot of supporting documentation. In the summary you should tell us
exactly what each person you are complaining about said or did that has
caused you to complain. If you are sending supporting documentation please
cross-reference it against the summary of your complaint.

You should be as detailed as possible and substantiate your complaint where
you can. Although you are not required to prove your complaint at this stage
of proceedings, you do have to demonstrate that you have reasonable
grounds for believing that the member(s) complained about has breached the
Code of Conduct.

Wherever possible, you should be specific about what you are alleging the
member(s) said or did, and the dates of the alleged incidents. You should
also confirm whether there are any witnesses to the alleged conduct and
provide their names and contact details if possible.

Who will be told about your complaint?

The Monitoring Officer and the Assessment Sub-Committee will receive the
details of your complaint when it is received. Following the meeting of the



Page 65

Assessment Sub-Committee, your name and a summary of your complaint
will be given to the member(s) you have complained about and to the parish
or town clerk (if applicable). If the member you have complained about is also
a member of another authority such as the County Council or the Police
Authority, it may be necessary for your complaint to be passed to the
Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee of that authority.

If you have serious concerns about your name and/or the details of your
complaint being passed on in this way, you should complete Part 5 of the
complaint form. This will be considered by the Assessment Sub-Committee.

The interests of fairness and natural justice generally require that members
complained of have a right to know who has made the complaint and what
that complaint is. We are unlikely to withhold your identity or the details of
your complaint unless there are exceptional reasons for doing so. Such
reasons might be that you would be at risk of physical harm or other
victimisation or harassment, or less favourable treatment in terms of any
service provision or other contractual relationship with the Council if your
identity were disclosed, or that there would be medical risks (supported by
medical evidence). Reasons for withholding details of your complaint might
be a serious risk of intimidation of witnesses, or a serious risk that evidence
may be compromised or destroyed.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee does not grant your request for
confidentiality, we will usually allow you the option of withdrawing your
complaint. However, it is important to understand that in certain exceptional
circumstances where the matter complained about is very serious, we can
proceed with an investigation and disclose your name even if you have
expressly asked us not to.

What to do when you have completed the form
The completed Complaint Form should be sent by post or electronically to the

Monitoring Officer, Mrs Sarah Taylor, Town Hall, Lancaster LA1 1PJ.
STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk



Page 66

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PROCEDURE FOR THE INITIAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS OF BREACH
OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Introduction

1.

This procedure applies when a complaint is received that a City Councillor, Co-
opted Member or Parish Councillor has or may have failed to comply with the
relevant Code of Conduct.

The person making the complaint will be referred to as the complainant and the
person against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as the subject
member.

The procedure will also apply if a complaint is referred back to the Standards
Committee by the Standards Board for England.

No Member or officer will participate in any stage of the assessment process if
they have any personal conflict of interest in the matter.

Assessment Sub-Committee

5.

Upon receipt of a complaint that a City Councillor, Co-opted Member or Parish
Councillor has or may have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, the
Monitoring officer will liaise with the Head of Democratic Services or her
representative to convene as soon as possible and in any event within 20
working days a meeting of an Assessment Sub-Committee.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will comprise three members of the Standards
Committee, including an Independent Member who will act as Chairman, and a
City Councillor. Where the complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, the
Assessment Sub-Committee will include a parish member of the Standards
Committee. The Sub-Committee will be convened on an ad hoc basis, and
members will be appointed by the Head of Democratic Services or her
representative on a rotational basis, taking account of availability, and on the
basis that so far as possible the Assessment Sub-Committee will not include a
city councillor of the same group as the Subject Member or the Complainant.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will be advised by the Monitoring Officer, the
Deputy Monitoring Officer or another legal officer. The meeting will not be open
to the public, and the subject member will not be informed of the complaint at this
stage. However, if a press enquiry is received about a complaint which has not
yet been considered by the Assessment Sub-Committee, and it is clear that the
press are aware of the identity of the subject of the complaint, the Monitoring
Officer is authorised to inform the subject member of the complaint immediately,
but, if in doubt, may consult the Chairman or Vice-Chairman, depending on gtheir
availability.

The purpose of the Assessment Sub-Committee will be to decide whether any
action should be taken on the complaint — either an investigation or some other
action. The Assessment Sub-Committee will not make any findings of fact.



9.

Page 67

The Assessment Sub-Committee will receive in advance of the meeting a copy of

the complaint, together with a report prepared by the Monitoring Officer or her

representative which will set out the following details:

o Whether the complaint is within the jurisdiction of the Standards Committee

e The paragraphs of the Code of Conduct the complaint might refer to, or the
paragraphs the complainant has identified
A summary of key aspects of the complaint if it is lengthy or complex

e Any further information that the officer has obtained to assist the Assessment
Sub-Committee with its decision. This may include minutes of meetings, a
copy of a member's entry in the register of interests, information from
Companies House or the Land Registry, or other easily obtainable documents

e Any clarification obtained by the officer from the complainant if the complaint
was unclear

It should be noted, however, that pre-assessment inquiries will be limited, and
will not be carried out in such as way as to amount to an investigation.

The Assessment Process

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will first consider whether the complaint meets
the following tests:

e The complaint is against one or more named members of the City Council or
a parish council within its district

e The subject member was in office at the time of the alleged conduct and the
Code of Conduct was in force at the time

e The complaint, if proven, would be a breach of the Code under which the
subject member was operating at the time of the alleged misconduct

If the complaint fails one or more of these tests, then the decision of the
Assessment Sub-Committee must be that no further action will be taken.

If the complaint meets the above tests, then the Assessment Sub-Committee will
proceed to consider whether to refer it to the Monitoring Officer, to refer it to the
Standards Board for England, or whether no action should be taken. In making
its decision, the Sub-Committee will take account of the Assessment Criteria at
Appendix 1, which have been approved by the Standards Committee, and which
will from time to time be reviewed by the Committee.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will, unless there are exceptional
circumstances, reach a decision within 20 working days of receipt of the
complaint.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides to take no action over a complaint,
then it will arrange for notice of that decision, including the reasons for it, to be
given to the complainant, the subject member, and, if the subject member is a
parish councillor, to the clerk to the relevant parish council. This will be done
within 5 working days after the date of the meeting.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides to refer the complaint to the
Monitoring Officer or to the Standards Board for England, it will arrange for a
summary of the complaint to be sent to the complainant and the subject member
stating what the allegation is, and the type of referral that has been made. This



15.

Page 68

will be done within 5 working days after the date of the meeting. The decision
notice will explain why a particular referral decision has been made.

However, the Assessment Sub-Committee may decide not to give the subject
member a summary of the complaint if it considers that doing so would be
against the public interest or would prejudice any future investigation. In
considering this, the Sub-Committee will take advice from the Monitoring Officer,
and will consider in particular whether it is likely that the subject member may
intimidate the complainant or any witnesses involved or whether early disclosure
of the complaint may lead to evidence being compromised or destroyed. The
Sub-Committee will balance whether the risk of the case being prejudiced by the
subject member being informed of the details of the complaint at that stage may
outweigh the fairness of notifying the subject member.

The Review Process

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides not to take any action on a complaint,
then the Complainant has a right to request a review of that decision, and will be
so advised when notified of the decision.

When a request for review is received, the Monitoring Officer will liaise with the
Head of Democratic Services or her representative to convene as soon as
possible and in any event within 20 working days a meeting of a Review Sub-
Committee.

The Review Sub-Committee will comprise three members of the Standards
Committee, including an Independent Member who will act as Chairman, a city
councillor, and, where the matter relates to a parish councillor, a parish
representative. None of these Members will have been members of the
Assessment Sub-Committee that considered the original complaint. The Sub-
Committee will be convened on an ad hoc basis, and members will be appointed
by the Head of Democratic Services or her representative on a rotational basis,
taking account of availability, and on the basis that so far as possible the Review
Sub-Committee will not include a city councillor of the same group as the Subject
Member or the Complainant.

In addition to the documents referred to in paragraph 9 above, the Review Sub-
Committee will have a copy of the Assessment Sub-Committee’s decision notice,
but will consider the complaint afresh, using the Assessment Criteria at Appendix
1. The Review Sub-Committee has the same decisions available to it as the
Assessment Sub-Committee and will follow the procedure outlined above in
paragraphs 10-15.

Where on a request for review further information is made available in support of
a complaint that changes its nature or gives rise to a potential new complaint, the
Review Sub-Committee will consider if it is more appropriate to pass this to an
Assessment Sub-Committee as a new complaint. In this instance, the Review
Sub-Committee will make a formal decision that the review request will not be
granted.

Withdrawing Complaints

21.

If a complainant asks to withdraw the complaint prior to the Assessment Sub-
Committee having made a decision on it, the Assessment Sub-Committee will



Page 69

decide whether or not to grant the request. In making its decision, the Sub-

Committee will consider:

o Whether the public interest in taking some action on the complaint outweighs
the Complainant’s wish to withdraw it

o Whether the complaint is such that action can be taken on it without the
complainant’s participation

o Whether there is an identifiable underlying reason for the request to withdraw
the complaint, and in particular whether there is any evidence that the
Complainant may have been pressured by the subject member or other
person to withdraw the complaint

Confidentiality

22.

23.

24,

25.

If a Complainant has asked for their identity to be withheld, this request will be
considered by the Assessment Sub-Committee at the same time as it considers
the complaint.

As a matter of fairness and natural justice, the subject member should usually be
told who has complained about them. However, in exceptional circumstances,
the Assessment Sub-Committee may grant confidentiality if it is satisfied that the
Complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they will be at risk of
physical harm or other victimisation or harassment, or less favourable treatment
in terms of any service provision or other contractual relationship with the Council
if their identity is disclosed, or where there are medical risks (supported by
medical evidence) associated with the Complainant’s identity being disclosed.

The Assessment Sub-Committee will also take into account whether it would be
possible to refer the complaint without making the Complainant’s identity known,
and in particular whether the Complainant’s participation would be required if the
complaint were referred.

If the Assessment Sub-Committee decides to refuse a request any a
Complainant for confidentiality, it may offer the Complainant the option to
withdraw, rather than proceed with their identity being disclosed. The
Assessment Sub-Committee will balance whether the public interest in taking
action on a complaint may outweigh the complainant’'s wish to have their identity
withheld from the subject member

Complaints about Members of more than one Authority

26.

Where a complaint is received about a city or parish councillor who is known to
be a member of another authority, for example the County Council or police
authority, the Monitoring Officer will before the meeting of the Assessment Sub-
Committee establish whether a similar allegation has been made to the other
authority. In the light of information from and in co-operation with the other
authority, the Assessment Sub-Committee will consider which authority should
deal with the complaint.

“Other Action”

27.

If an Assessment Sub-Committee or a Review Sub-Committee refers a complaint
to the Monitoring Officer for action other than investigation, the Monitoring
Officer's subsequent report under Regulation 13(4)(c) will be considered by the



Page 70

same Assessment Sub-Committee or Review Sub-Committee that made the
referral.



Page 71

APPENDIX 1

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE — ASSESSMENT
CRITERIA

A. Circumstances where the Assessment Sub-Committee may decide that no action
should be taken in respect of the allegation:

Al Where the complaint is about someone who is no longer a member of the city
council or a parish council

A2 Where the information provided by the complainant is not sufficient to enable the
Sub-Committee to make a decision as to whether the complaint should be referred
for investigation or other action

However, the complainant will be advised that it is possible to resubmit the complaint
with further information.

A3 Where a substantially similar allegation has previously been made by the
complainant to the Standards Board or the Standards Committee, or the complaint
has been the subject of an investigation by another regulatory authority (except
where a Review Sub-Committee has taken the view that a request for review
contains new information and should be considered by an Assessment Sub-
Committee rather than the Review Sub-Committee)

The Sub-Committee will only refer the complaint for investigation or other action if it
considers that there is a compelling reason to do so

A4 Where the complaint is about something that happened so long ago that those
involved are unlikely to remember it clearly enough to provide credible evidence, or
where the lapse of time means there would be little benefit or point in taking action
now.

It is acknowledged, however, that where a delay has arisen as a result of criminal or
other legal proceedings, it may be appropriate to refer the complaint for investigation
or other action.

A5 Where the allegation is anonymous, unless it includes documentary or
photographic evidence indicating an exceptionally serious or significant matter

A6 Where the allegation discloses a potential breach of the Code of Conduct, but the
Committee considers that the complaint is not serious enough to warrant further
action

A7 Where the complaint appears to be malicious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat,
unless a serious matter is raised in the complaint

B. Circumstances where the Standards Committee may decide to refer the allegation
to the Monitoring Officer for investigation

B1 Where the allegation discloses a potential breach of the Code of Conduct that the
Committee considers sufficiently serious to justify the cost of an investigation



Page 72

C. Circumstances where the Standards Committee may decide to refer the allegation
to the Monitoring Officer for training, conciliation or other steps as appear appropriate
to the Standards Committee

Note This approach may be appropriate where the Sub-Committee believes that the
conduct, if proven, may amount to a failure to comply with the Code, and that some
action should be taken in response to the complaint. If this approach is taken, the
purpose of the action is NOT to find out whether the subject member breached the
Code, and no conclusion will have been reached on whether the subject member
failed to comply with the Code. It should be noted that this approach may only be
taken after consultation with the Monitoring Officer

C1 Where the complaint suggests that there is a wider problem throughout the
authority and it is appropriate to extend the action to other members who are not the
subject of the complaint

C2 Where it is apparent that the subject of the allegation is relatively inexperienced
as a Member, or has admitted making an error and the matter would not warrant a
more serious sanction

C3 Where it appears that even if the allegation were fully investigated, and a breach
of the Code of Conduct upheld, training or conciliation would be the appropriate
remedy

D. Circumstances where the Standards Committee may decide to refer an allegation
to the Standards Board

D1 Where the Assessment Sub-Committee believes that the status of the member or
members, or the number of members about whom the complaint is made, would
make it difficult for the Standards Committee to deal with the complaint.  For
example if the complaint is about the Leader of the Council or a Group Leader, or a
member of the Cabinet or Standards Committee

D2 Where the Assessment Sub-Committee believes that the status of the
complainant(s) would make it difficult for the Standards Committee to deal with the
complaint. For example if the complainant is a group leader, member of Cabinet or
the Standards Committee, or the Chief Executive or a statutory officer.

D3 Where the Assessment Sub-Committee considers that there is a potential conflict
of interest of so many members of the Standards Committee that it could not properly
deal with the matter itself

D4 Where the Assessment Sub-Committee believes that that there is a potential
conflict of interest of the Monitoring Officer or other officers, and that suitable
alternative arrangements cannot be put in place to address the conflict

D5 Where the case is so serious or complex that it cannot be handled locally

D6 Where the complaint will require substantial amounts of evidence beyond that
available from the authority’s documents, its members or officers

D7 Where the complaint relates to long-term or systematic member/officer bullying
which could be more effectively investigated by someone outside the Council



Page 73

D8 Where the allegation raises significant or unresolved legal issues on which a
national ruling would be helpful

D9 Where the public might perceive the Council to have an interest in the outcome of
a case. For example if the authority could be liable to be judicially reviewed if the
complaint were upheld



Page 74

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PROCEDURE FOR CASES REFERRED FOR INVESTIGATION BY THE
MONITORING OFFICER

1. When an allegation is referred to the Monitoring Officer by the Assessment Sub-
Committee or by an Ethical Standards Officer (ESO) for investigation, the
Monitoring Officer will within five working days, unless otherwise directed by the
Assessment Sub-Committee of the Standards Committee or the ESO, inform the
member who is the subject of the allegation of failure to comply with the code of
conduct, (“the Subject Member”), the person who made the allegation (“the
Complainant”), the clerk to any parish council concerned, and the standards
committee of any other authority concerned, that the matter has been referred for
investigation.

2. Unless the Assessment Sub-Committee or ESO have directed that it would be
contrary to the public interest or prejudicial to the investigation, the Monitoring
Officer will at the same time provide the Subject Member with a written summary
of the allegation.

3. The Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer who may be an officer
of the Council, or an external investigating officer. The Investigating Officer may
appoint persons to assist him/her in the conduct of the investigation, and may
obtain such professional advice as may be necessary. The Monitoring Officer will
advise the Subject Member and the Complainant of the appointment of the
Investigating Officer. The appointment will set out the responsibilities delegated
by the Monitoring Officer to the Investigating Officer. The Monitoring Officer will
maintain the function of overseeing the investigation.

4. In carrying out the investigation, the Investigating Officer shall have regard to any
relevant guidance issued by the Standards Board, and shall comply with any
relevant direction given by the Standards Board.

5. The Investigating Officer may make such inquiries as he/she thinks necessary or
expedient for the purposes of conducting the investigation, and may require any
person to give such information or explanation as the Investigating Officer thinks
necessary or expedient for the purpose of conducting the investigation. The
Investigating Officer may require any of the relevant authorities concerned to
provide such advice and assistance as may reasonably be needed to assist in
the investigation, and to provide reasonable access to such documents in the
possession of that authority as appear to the Investigating Officer to be
necessary for the purpose of conducting the investigation.

6. Statements will be prepared and agreed with each person interviewed during an
investigation, including the Subject Member. The Subject Member will be
advised that he/she may be accompanied by a professional representative or
advisor, a Group colleague or friend during the interview. Any other person
interviewed may be accompanied by a friend or representative if they so wish.

7. The Investigating Officer will complete the investigation within a reasonable

period of time according to the nature of the complaint and the extent of the
investigation required.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 75

Where during the course of the investigation, as a result of new evidence or
information, the Investigating Officer forms an opinion that the matter is materially
more serious or materially less serious than may have seemed apparent to the
Assessment Sub-Committee, when it made its decision to refer the matter for
investigation, and that it would have made a different decision had it been aware
of the new evidence or information, or where the Subject Member has died, is
seriously ill or has resigned from the authority concerned, and the Investigating
officer is of the opinion that in the circumstances it is no longer appropriate to
continue with the investigation, the matter shall be referred to a new Assessment
Sub-Committee. The Assessment Sub-Committee shall consider the matter as if
it were a new allegation.

The Investigating Officer, having concluded the investigation, will consider
whether to produce a draft report before the final report. A draft report may be
appropriate where the facts are complex or ambiguous , or where the facts are
disputed. Any draft report will be issued to the Subject Member and the
Complainant for review and comment, and will indicate that it does not
necessarily represent the Investigating Officer’s final finding.

If the Investigating Officer issues a draft report, he/she will consider whether the
responses reveal a need for further investigation or for changes to the report. In
some complex cases, the Investigating Officer may wish to issue a second draft
report before the final report.

The Investigating Officer's final report will commence with a statement of the
Investigating Officer’s finding. The finding will be either that there has been a
failure to comply with the code of conduct of the authority concerned, or as the
case may be any other authority concerned (“a finding of failure”), or that there
has not been a failure to comply with the code of conduct of the authority
concerned, or as the case may be, of any other authority concerned (“a finding of
no failure”). A copy of the report will be sent to the Subject Member and referred
to the original Assessment Sub-Committee (which will be referred to as the
Assessment (Regulation 17) Sub-Committee) and to the Standards Committee of
any other authority of which the Subject Member is a member, if that other
authority so requests.

When the Assessment (Regulation 17) Sub-Committee considers the finding of

the Investigation Officer, it shall make one of the following findings:

e That it accepts the finding of no failure (“a finding of acceptance”)

e That the matter should be considered at a hearing by a Hearings Sub-
Committee of the Standards Committee, or

o That the matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel for determination
(but only if it has determined that the action it could take against the Subject
Member would be insufficient were a finding of failure to be made, and the
president or deputy president of the Adjudication Panel has agreed to accept
the referral)

Where there is a finding of acceptance, written notice of that finding shall be
given to the Subject Member, the Complainant, any parish council concerned,
any ESO concerned and the Standards Committee of any other authority
concerned, and notices shall be published as required by the relevant
Regulations, unless the Subject Member requests otherwise.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



Page 76

14. Where the Assessment (Regulation 17) Sub-Committee decides to hold a
hearing, this shall be conducted in accordance with the Committee’s Pre-hearing
and Hearing Procedures.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



Page 77

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PRE-HEARING PROCEDURE

1.

Where an Assessment (Regulation 17) Sub-Committee has made a finding that a
matter should be considered at a hearing, the following procedure shall apply.

A Hearing Sub-Committee shall be convened in accordance with the principles
set out in Appendix 1 hereto.

The Subject Member will be asked for a written response within fifteen days,

which response shall set out the Subject Member's reply to the Investigating

Officer’s report and shall state whether he/she

o disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the report, giving the reasons for
any disagreement

e wishes to be represented by a solicitor or barrister, or with the consent of the

Sub-Committee by any other person

wishes to give evidence to the Sub-Committee, either orally or in writing

wishes to call relevant withesses to give evidence to the Committee

wishes any part of the hearing to be held in private

wishes any part of the Investigating Officer's report or other relevant

documents to be withheld from the public

Forms A-D appended hereto will be provided for this response.

The Subject Member shall be informed that if, at the meeting of the Sub-
Committee, he/she seeks to dispute any matter contained in the Investigating
Officer’s report without having previously notified the intention to do so, the Sub-
Committee may refuse to allow the disputed matters to be raised unless satisfied
that there are good reasons why they have not been raised beforehand.

Upon receipt of the Member’s response, the Investigating Officer shall be invited

to comment on it within ten working days, and to say whether or not he/she

e wishes to call relevant witnesses to give evidence or submit written or other
evidence to the Sub-Committee

e wishes any part of the hearing to be held in private

e wishes any part of the report or other relevant documents to be withheld from
the public

Upon receipt of the Investigating Officer's response, the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee and the Monitoring Officer or other legal adviser will consider the
responses of the Subject Member and the Investigating Officer and set a date for
the hearing in consultation with the Head of Democratic Services.

The Member and the Investigating Officer are entitled to request that any
witnesses they want should be called. However, the Chairman of the hearing
may limit the number of witnesses to be called, if he/she believes the number
requested is unreasonable and that some witnesses will simply be repeating the
evidence of earlier withesses, or else not providing evidence that will assist the
Sub-Committee to reach its decision.

Nothing in this procedure shall limit the Chairman of the hearing from requesting
the attendance of any additional withesses whose evidence he/she considers
would assist the Sub-Committee to reach its decision.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



Page 78

9. The Monitoring Officer/Legal Adviser, in consultation with the Chairman, will:

e confirm a date, time and place for the hearing, which must be within three
months from the date on which the Investigating Officer's report was
completed and not less than fourteen days after the report was sent to the
Subject Member
confirm the main facts of the case that are agreed
confirm the main facts that are not agreed
provide copies of any written evidence to the relevant parties
confirm which witnesses will be called by the parties
provide the parties with copies of the proposed procedure for the hearing,
specifying which parts of the matter, if any, may be considered in private

Standards Committee 19.06.08



Page 79

APPENDIX 1 COMPOSITION OF THE HEARING SUB-COMMITTEE

1.

The Sub-Committee shall comprise five Members drawn from the full members of
the Standards Committee, and of these, at least two shall be Independent
Members.

The membership of the Sub-Committee will vary for each individual hearing, and
will be determined by the Head of Democratic Services on the principles set out
below.

Where the matter for determination relates to a City Councillor, the Sub-
Committee will include no more than two City Councillors. The other members of
the Sub-Committee will be either two Independent Members and one Parish
Member, or three Independent Members.

Where the matter for determination relates to a parish council matter, the Sub-
Committee will comprise two Independent Members, and either one Parish
Member and two City Councillors, or two Parish Members and one City
Councillor.

The Chairman of the Standards Committee will generally be a member of the
Sub-Committee and its Chairman. Otherwise, another Independent Member will
be the Chairman of the Sub-Committee.

In selecting the membership of a Sub-Committee, the Head of Democratic
Services will endeavour to ensure that members are selected in rotation, taking
into account their availability for the proposed hearing date, and any possible
conflicts of interest. Wherever possible, members of the Assessment (and if
relevant the Review) Sub-Committee which considered the complaint will not be
appointed to the Hearing Committee, but it is recognised that there are occasions
when this may be necessary provided that there is no conflict of interest.
Wherever possible there should be a gender balance on the Sub-Committee.

City Councillors shall wherever possible (and it is acknowledged that this will not
always be possible) be selected on the following principles:

- aMember of the Sub-Committee should not be a member of the same Group
as the Member who is the subject of the hearing.

- if the complainant is a City Councillor, a member of the Sub-Committee
should not be a member of the same Group as the complainant.

- If the Sub-Committee includes two City Councillors, they should not be
Members of the same Group.

Subject to these principles, the Head of Democratic Services will endeavour to
ensure that elected members of the Committee are selected in rotation, taking
into account their availability for the proposed hearing date, and any possible
conflicts of interest.

Once a Sub-Committee has been selected for a hearing, if a Member becomes
unavailable to attend, the Head of Democratic Services will select a substitute
from the membership of the Standards Committee, in accordance with the above
principles.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



Page 80

9. The quorum of the Sub-Committee meeting shall be three members, of whom
one must be an Independent Member, and no more than one should be a City

Councillor. If the hearing concerns a parish matter, a Parish Member must be
present.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



-31vda

‘daNoOIS

JINVN

‘Aressaoau JI S19ays alesedas yoene ases|d

Page 81

peas pjnoys ydeibeted ayy moy 03 se uoiysabbng

ydelibeted eyl ui papinoid 10} Jo sbBuipuly ayl yim Buleaibesip 1oj suoseay

1iodal

S.OIN wouy
‘ON “eJted

"aAlTeUlB) e
paisabbns InoA pue suoseal InoA aAIb pue ‘uodal s,Ja210 Bunebnsaau] ayl ul
108} Jo sBulpull ay1 yum aaibesip noA alsaym ydeibesed Aue Jo Jaquinu ay) Jajua ases|d

Y NH0O4

1odal s,19211J0 Buirebiisaau] 8yl Ul IN0 189S 82UBPIAS Bl 01 dsuodsal s, Jaqusy

291IWWO0) Splepuels - [1Iouno) A1) Jaiseaue




Page 82

-31vda ‘daNoOIS

-JINVN

"Alessaoau JI sl@ays areledas yoene ases|d

S

I

90UBPIAS 3Y) 4O S|re1ad

"ON "eled

‘'noA 1noge apew uonels|ie ay) 0] JUBAS|SI uolyeBa|e ayl 01 1UBAB|2] 82UBPIAS JIBYIO

Sl [93) NOA aduapina Jaylo Aue ‘sydelbered palaquinu ayl Buisn ‘mojag 1o 189S aseald

g9 NYO4 291IWWO0) Splepuels - [1Iouno) A1) Jaiseaue




Page 83

Lancaster City Council - Standards Committee FORM C

Arrangements for the Standards Committee Hearing

Please tick the relevant boxes.

Reason:
The proposed date for the Standards Yes
1 Committee hearing is given in the |:|
accompanying letter. Are you planning to go to
the hearing?
If “No”, please explain why.
No
2 Are you going to present your own case? Yes
No
Name:
If you are not presenting your own case, will a Yes
3 representative present it for you? |:|
No

Quialifications:

Is your representative a practising solicitor or Yes
4 barrister? |:|

If “Yes”, please give his or her legal
qualifications. Then go to question 6.

If “No”, please go to question 5. No

Details:

Does your representative have any connection Yes
5 with the case? |:|

If “Yes”, please give details.

NAME

SIGNATURE

DATE




Page 84

6 Are you gong to call any withesses? Yes
If “Yes”, please fill in Form D. |:|
No
Details:
Do you, your representative or your Yes
7 witnesses have any access difficulties (for |:|
example, is wheelchair access needed)?
If “Yes”, please give details.
No
Details:
Do you, your representative or witnesses Yes
8 have any special needs (for example, is an |:|
interpreter needed)?
If “Yes”, please give details.
No
Reasons:
Do you want any part of the hearing to be Yes
9 held in private? |:|
If “Yes”, please give reasons.
No
Reasons:
Do you want any part of the relevant Yes
10 documents to be withheld from public |:|
inspection?
If “Yes”, please give reasons.
No

NAME

SIGNATURE

DATE




Lancaster City Council - Standards Committee

Page 85

Details of proposed witnesses to be called

FORM D

Name of witness or witnesses 1
2
3
WITNESS 1
Will the witness give evidence about the Yes Outline of evidence:

a

allegation?

If “Yes”, please provide an outline of the
evidence the witness will give.

Will the witness give evidence about what
action the Standards Committee should take if
it finds that that the Code of Conduct has not
been followed?

Yes

QOutline of evidence:

WITNESS 2

a

Will the witness give evidence about the
allegation?

If “Yes”, please provide an outline of the
evidence the witness will give.

Yes

Outline of evidence

Will the witness give evidence about what
action the Standards Committee should take if
it finds that that the Code of Conduct has not
been followed?

Yes

Outline of evidence




Page 86

WITNESS 3

Will the witness give evidence about the Yes Outline of evidence

a allegation? |:|

If “Yes”, please provide an outline of the
evidence the witness will give.

b Will the witness give evidence about what Yes Outline of evidence
action the Standards Committee should take if |:|

it finds that that the Code of Conduct has not
been followed?

NAME

SIGNED

DATE




Page 87

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

HEARING PROCEDURE

1.

The Chairman may agree to vary this procedure in any particular instance where
he/she is of the opinion that such variation is necessary in the interests of
fairness.

The Subject Member may be represented or accompanied during the meeting by
a solicitor or barrister, or with the permission of the Sub-Committee, another
person. It is the responsibility of the Subject Member to arrange any
representation.

The Sub-Committee may take legal advice from its legal adviser at any time
during the hearing or during its deliberations. The substance of any advice given
to the Sub-Committee will be shared with the Subject Member and Investigating
Officer if they are present at the hearing.

At the start of the hearing, the Chairman shall introduce each of the members of
the Sub-Committee, the Subject member (if present), the Investigating Officer (if
present) and any other officers present, and shall then explain the procedure
which the Sub-Committee will follow in the conduct of the hearing.

The Sub-Committee shall then confirm that it is quorate, and deal with any
disclosures of interests.

If the Subject Member is not present at the start of the hearing:

e The Chairman will ask the Monitoring Officer/Legal Adviser whether the
Subject Member has indicated his/her intention not to attend the hearing

e The Sub-Committee shall then consider any reasons which the Subject
Member has provided for not attending the hearing and shall decide whether
it is satisfied that there is sufficient reason for such failure to attend

o If the Sub-Committee is satisfied with such reasons, it shall adjourn the
hearing to another date

o If the Sub-Committee is not satisfied with such reasons, or if the Subject
Member has not given any such reasons, the Sub-Committee shall decide
whether to consider the matter and make a determination in the absence of
the Subject Member, or to adjourn the hearing to another date.

After the preliminary procedures, the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not
there are any significant disagreements about the facts contained in the
Investigating Officer’s report.

If there is disagreement, the Investigating Officer will present the evidence which
is relevant to the facts in dispute. With the permission of the Sub-Committee,
witnesses can be called to give relevant evidence. The Subject Member and the
Sub-Committee members may ask questions of the Investigating Officer or any
witness.

The Subject Member or his/her representative will then present the evidence that
is relevant to the facts in dispute. With the permission of the Sub-Committee,
witnesses can be called to give relevant evidence. The Investigating Officer and
the Sub-Committee members may ask questions of the Subject Member or any
witnesses.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Page 88

If the Subject Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the report without
having given prior notice, he or she must give good reasons for not mentioning it
before the hearing. After considering the Subject Member’'s explanation, the
Sub-Committee may continue with the hearing, relying on the information in the
report, may allow the Subject member to make representations about the issue
and invite the Investigating Officer to respond and call any witnesses as
necessary, or may postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to
be present.

The Sub-Committee will consider in private all the evidence which it has heard in
order to establish its findings of fact, and to reach a conclusion as to whether
there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.

At any stage in the consideration of the matter, the Sub-Committee may return to
ask further questions of the Investigating Officer or the Subject Member or seek
further information. The other party will be given an opportunity to comment upon
the questions asked or the responses made.

At the conclusion of the Sub-Committee’s deliberations, the Chairman will advise
the Subject member and the Investigating Officer of their findings.

If the Sub-Committee concludes that the Subject Member has failed to comply
with the Code of Conduct, the Chairman will invite representations from the
Investigating Officer and the Subject Member as to what action, if any, it should
take. The Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Subject Member and the
Investigating Officer. The Subject Member will be invited to make any final
relevant points.

The Sub-Committee shall then consider in private whether to impose a sanction,
and, if so, what sanction to impose and when that sanction should take effect.

The sanctions open to the Sub-Committee are:

e censure of the Subject Member

e restriction for a period not exceeding six months of the Subject Member’'s
access to the premises of the authority or use of the resources of the
authority, provided that those restrictions are reasonable and proportionate to
the nature of the breach and do not unduly restrict the person’s ability to
perform the functions of a member

e partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six
months;
suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six months

o that the Subject Member submits a written apology in a form specified by the
Sub-Committee

e that the Subject Member undertakes such training as the Sub-Committee
specifies

e partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six
months or until such time as the Subject Member submits a written apology in
a form specified by the Sub-Committee

e partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six
months or until such time as the Subject Member has undertaken such
training or has participated in such conciliation as the Sub-Committee
specifies

Standards Committee 19.06.08



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 89

e suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six months or
until such time as the Subject Member has submitted a written apology in a
form specified by the Sub-Committee

e suspension of the Subject Member for a period not exceeding six months or
until such time as the Subject Member has undertaken such training or has
participated in such conciliation as the Sub-Committee specifies

e any combination of the above sanctions

Any sanction imposed by the Sub-Committee shall commence immediately
unless the Sub-Committee directs that a sanction shall commence on another
date within six months from the imposition of the sanction.

In deciding to impose a sanction, the Sub-Committee shall consider all the
relevant circumstances and shall have regard to any relevant Guidance issued by
the Standards Board

The Chairman will announce the decision of the Sub-Committee. Written notice
of the findings of the Sub-Committee will be given as soon as is reasonably
practicable to the Subject Member, the Standards Board, the Standards
Committee of any other authority concerned, any parish council concerned, and
any person who made an allegation that gave rise to the investigation. Public
notices shall be given in accordance with the Regulations.

Where the Sub-Committee determines that the Subject Member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chairman shall inform the Subject Member
of the right to seek permission to appeal against the Sub-Committee’s finding or
any sanction imposed by sending a notice in writing to the President of the
Adjudication Panel for England at 23 Victoria Avenue, Harrogate, HG1 5RD
within 21 days of receipt of the written notice of findings.

The Sub-Committee may consider making any recommendations to the authority
concerned with a view to promoting higher standards of conduct among its
members.

Standards Committee 19.06.08



	Agenda
	6 Work Programme
	workprogramme09.doc

	7 Standards Board for England - Annual Return
	annualreturnfinal.pdf

	8 The Standards Committee (Further Provisions)(England) Regulations 2009
	2009regsv1

	9 Standards Board Guidance on Other Action
	otheractionappendix1.pdf
	otheractionappendix2.pdf

	10 Annual Review of Registration of Interests
	11 Procedure for Considering Allegations of Breach of the Council's Protocols
	08protocolreport.doc

	12 Review of Complaint Documentation and Assessment Criteria and Investigation and Hearing Procedures
	complaintform270508updatedpostmeeting.doc
	Guidance for Complainants270508.doc
	assessmentprocedureandcriteria0409.doc
	investigationprocedure200608.doc
	prehearingprocedure200608.doc
	Form A.doc
	Form B.doc
	Form C.doc
	Form D.doc
	Hearing procedure200608.doc


